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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

NOTICE

TOTHE MEMBERS
Notice is heraby given that the 51st Annual General Meeting of BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED will be held on Wednesday,
2Tth September, 2023 at 01:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 5, Sector- 25, Ballabhgarh, Haryana-
121004, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,
togather with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon

2. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Suresh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 00041150) wha retires by rotation at this Annual General
Meeting and being afigible offers himsalf for re-appointmant.

To consider the raappnnﬂmnnt u[l'u'lf Eurash Kumar Eham'la (DIN; 'Dﬂﬂdﬁ Eﬂi asih& Whole-time Director on the Board of tha
Company and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as Special Resolutions, with or without modification(s )
“RESOLVED THAT pursuani o the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and rules mads thereundar and applicable requlations of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obfigations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations™), (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactmeant(s) theraof, for the ime being in force), read with the Articles of Association of the
Comparny and subject to such other approvals as may ba necessary and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and that of the Board of Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is heraby
accorded for the re-appoiniment, including payment of remuneration to, Mr, Suresh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 00041150), as a
Whole-time Director of the Company for a further penod of five years with effect from July 01, 2023 on the terms and
conditions, set outin the Statement annexed 1o the Motice convening this mesting and also contained in a letter to be issued o
Mr. Sharma as per the drafl placed before the Meeting and initialled by the Company Secretary for the purpose of
identification.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committae thereof) be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acls, deeds and things, as it may in its absolule discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and
fo settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of the aforesaid re-appointment including to alter, vary,
amend or revisa the remuneration or other larms and conditions as specified above from time to tima to the extent the Board
may deem approprigte in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V thereto (including any
statutory modification(s) for reenactmeant thereof from the time being in force) without being required to seek any furiher
consant or approval of the Members of the Company, or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be desmed o have
given their approval thereto.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

Tc onrssrdar we mappnh'm'nanl of Mr. Hlmanﬁ!'u Sharma EDIN um-mat; as r.ha Managmg Director on the Board of the
Company and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a Speclal Reselution, with or without modification(s):
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V and other applicabie
provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 and rules made thereunder and applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {"Listing Regulations”), (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment{s) thereof, for the time being in force), read with the Aricles of Association of the
Company and subject to such other approvals as may be necessary and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and that of the Board of Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for the re-appointment, including payment of remuneration to, Mr, Himanshu Sharma (DIN; 00041181}, as the
Managing Director of the Company for a further period of five years with effect from July 01, 2023 on the terms and conditions,
set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening this meeting and also contained in a letter to be issued fo Mr.
Sharma as per the draft placed before the Meeting and initialled by the Company Secretary for the purpose of identification.”
"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it may in ils absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and
to sefthe any quaston, difficulty or doubt that may ansa in respect of the aforesaid re-appointmant inaluding 1o alter, vary,
amend or revise the remuneration or other terms and conditions as specified above from time o time to the extent the Board
may deem appropriate in accordance with the provisions of Section 187 of the Act read with Schedule ' therato (including any
statutory modification(s) for reenactment thereof from the time being in force) without being required to seak any further
consent or approval of the Members of the Company, or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed fo have
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given theirapproval therato,”

Tu Dunsn:lar 1ha appuh'lhnanl of Mr Sm]ay Kumﬂr Ral {D’IN {1153?531: as a Mon-Executive Independent Director on the
Board of the Company and If thought fl, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution, with or without
modification{s):

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read togather with the provisions of the Rules framed there under and read with Scheduls IV to
the Act as amended from time 1o time and further read with all circulars, notifications, provisions of the Securities & Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other provisions of law, as
applicable for the time being, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rai (DIN: 01587531), who has submitted a declaration that he meels the
criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, and whose office shall
not be liable to retire by rotation, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold
office for 5 (Five} consecutive years, with immadiate effect, for a term up to 26th September, 2028."

stered Office: By the Order of the Board
E[?Nﬂ-ﬁ Sector-25 BHAGAWAT| OXYGEN LIMITED
gethl RITU DAMANI

H 121004

SAE: COMPANY SECRETARY
Date: 30.05.2023 ACS: 35435
Place: Kolkata

Notes:

1. Amemberentitied to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint 2 proxy to attend and
vote on a poll instead of him/ her and the proxy need not be a member of the Company, The instrument appointing the proxy
should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the
commancement of the meeting. A parson can act a proxy on behall of members not exceeding fifty and hotding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company camying voting rights. Amember holding mare
fhan ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carmying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and
such person shall not act as a praxy for any other person or sharaholder.

2. Attendance slip, proxy form and the route map of the venua of the Meeting are annexed hereio,

3. Corporata members intending fo send their authonsad representative(s) to attend the Meeting are requested 1o send to the
Company a cerdified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with the specimen signature(s) of the
representative(s) authonsed under the said Board Resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting,

4. Members /| Proxies | Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to the Meeting necessary details of their
shareholding, attendance slip(s) and copies of Annual Report. In case of joint holders attending the mesating, the Member
whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitied
tovole.

5  As Amended by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosura Reguirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018 dated
June 08, 2018, membars holding shares in physical form are mandatorily reguired o dematerialize thair holding in order to
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares. Members can contact Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Lid for further
assislance,

6. Members who hold shares in the dematenalized form are requested to bring their Depository
ID Mumber and Client |0 numbers to facilitate easier identification of attendance at the Annual General Meeting.

7. Massrs Skyline Financial Services Pyl. Lid has been appointed as Registrars and Share Transfer Agents for both physical
and dematernalized shares of the Company.

8. Members are informed that the scrip of the Company are activated both on CDSL and NSDL and may be dematerialized
under the ISIN No. INE026101010.

9. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed fram, Thursday, 21st September, 2023 to
Wednesday, 27th September, 2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpese of Annual General Meating.

10. The instrumant of transfer completed in all respect togethar with requisite enclosura, should be sent 1o the Company well in
advance so as to reach the Company prior to closure of Register of Members

11.  Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates fo their
Depasitory Participants ("DPs") with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical
mode are requestad to advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company/ Company’s Registrar and
Transfer Agents, |a. Skyline Financial Services P, Lid,
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12,
13,

14,

15.

16,

17

18.

15.

20.

21,

22,

For any further information regarding accounts intimation may be given to the Company in writing at least 10 days in advanca
from the date of the aforesaid meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.

Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them, The
prescribed form can be oblained! submitied to Registrar & Share Transfer Agents of the Company,

In the light of the recent green initiative of the Governmean! of India, those membars who have not yet registered their email
id's ara requested {o register their email id's with their depository participants in case of shares held in dematerialised form
and those members holding shares in physical form to register their email id's with the R & T agent for receiving all
communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company elecironically. We urge upon you to
register the amail id on priority and halp the Company to support the nation in the green initiative.

Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and
unclaimed amounts lyving with Companies Rules, 2012, the Company has NIL amount unpaid and unclaimed with the
Company as on 20th Septembar, 2022 (date of last Annual General Meeting ) and the Company has declared the same with
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs website.

Pursuant to the retaxations provided vide general circular no, SEBIVHO/CFDIPoD-2/PICIRI2023/4 dated 05.01.2023, issued
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), from Regulation 36(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure  Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR Regulations”) which requires sending hard copy of annual report
containing salient features of all the documents prescribad in Section 136 of the Companies Act, 201310 the shareholders
who have not registered their emall addresses, the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2022-23,
including the notice of the 5151 Annual General Meeting (AGM) and instruction for e-voling along with proxy form and
attendance siip are being sent by alectronic mode to the members whose amail-id is registered with the Company/
Depository Participant unless a member has requested for @ physical copy of the document. The notice of the AGM
published by advertisernent in lerms of Regulation 47 of LODR Regulalions, contains a link to the annual report, so as o
enable shareholders to have access to the full annual report.

Members may also note that the notice of the 5151 AGM and Annual Report 2022-23 will be available on the Company's
waebsite hitps:/f'www globalbol.com/

The SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every paricipant in securities market.
Members holding Shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN details to their Depository
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding Shares in physical form can submit their
PAN details to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents,

Additional Information, Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the listing Regulation, in respect of the Direclor seeking appointmentire-
appointment at the AGM, forms part of the Notice.

Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying Statement are open for inspection by Members at the
Registered Office of the Company during business hours on all working days, up to the date of the Meeting.

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of
Membars of the Company will be antitled to vola at tha AGM.

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules. 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015 and
Regulation 44 of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Otligation and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulation, 2015,
the Cormpany i5 pleased to provide members facility lo exencise their right to vole on resolution proposed 1o be considerad at
tha 51stAnnual Ganeral Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be fransacted through e-voting services.
Mecessary amangements have been made by the Company with National Securities Depository (India) Limited (NSOL) to
facilitate remote e-voting. E voting = optional and members shall have the aption to vate either through remate e-voling or in
person at the general maeting

The instructions for members fnrremotaa vuﬂng ara as under;-

In lam'ls ufSEBl c:fcular datad Demmhﬂrﬂ 2021] on a-‘u'ﬂtm fﬂl:lFItjl' ﬂruwdad I:ry Lls!ﬂd C‘.nmpmlﬂsl Individual =hareholders
holding securities in demal mode are allowed to vole through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depasitory Parlicipants. Shareholders are advised o update their moblle number and email Id in their demat accounts in
order to access e-Voting facility.
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Login mathod for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat moda is given below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL.

2 f you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, oplion to register is available af

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSOL Viz, hifps.ieservices nadl.com
efther on a Personal Computer or on @ mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the
“Beneficial Owner"” icon under “Login™ which is available under IDeAS' section , this will
prompl you to enter your existing Liser ID and Passward. After successiul authentication, you
will be able to ses e-Voting services under Value added services, Click on “Access to e-
Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page, Click on company
nama or e-Vioting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed 1o e-\oting website
of NSDL for casting your vota during the remote e-Voling period.

Mﬁiﬂlﬁiﬁﬁm

3 "u"tslt the B-VEHZ"‘IQ waban of NSDL Dpen wab bmrwsar by typing the following URL:
hitps/fwww evoting.nsdl.comy either on a Personal Computer or on 8 mobile. Once the
home page of e-\Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder™ember’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your Usear ID
(i.e. your sixteen digit demat eccount number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected 1o NSDL Depository sile wherein you can see a-Voting page. Click on company
name or a-Vioting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be redirectad to e-Valing websila
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

4, Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App "NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

S&Im‘d "Raﬂht&l ﬂnlim i'or IDeAS Portal" or click al

NSDL Mobile App is avaoilable on

‘ AppStore B Google Play

Individual Sharehaolders
holding secunties in demat
maode with CDSL

i

. Existing users who have opled for Easi | Easiest, thay can login through their user id and
password. Option will b made availablg o reach e-Voling page without any further
authenllcatiun

users to login te Easi ( Easiest
gflogin or www.cdslindia.com and click on MNew

Thﬂ LIRL for

2. After successful login of EasilEasiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menuw. Tha
Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider Le. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vole.

aH tl'ra user s rlol regh;lered I'ur Ea&lFEasIasl Dptl:m to register is avallable at

4. Altﬂmatlualy th& user can directly access e- 'I.I'nllng pﬂgﬂ by providing demat Account
Mumber and PAN MNo. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat
Account. After succassful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP
i, NSOL where the e-\Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository
Participant registerad with NSDLICDSL for e-Voting facility. upan logging in, you will be able
to see e-Voling option. Click on e-Vioting option, you will be redirected o NSOL/CDSL
Depository siie after successful authentication, wherain you can see e-Voling feature. Click
on company name or e-Voling service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voling period

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve Liser IDY Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
securities in demat mode with NSDL sending & request at evoling@nsdi.co,in or call at tofl free no.; 1800 1020 980 and
18002244 30

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact COSL helpdesk by
securities in demat mode with CDSL sanding a request at helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or conact at 022-
23058738 or 022-23058542-43

B) Login Mathod for e-Vioting shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
and sharaholders holding securitles in physical modae.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting wabsite?

1. Visit the e-Voling website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: hitps:/hwww. evating.nsdl.com/ either
on a Personal Computer oron a mobile

2. Once the home page of e-Voling system s launched, click on the icon “Login® which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section,

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enfer your User 1D, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen
Allematively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in al hitps:feservices.nsdl.com/ with your
existing |DEAS login. Once you log-in o NSDL eservices afler using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can
proceed to Step 2 i.e, Cast your vote electronically,

4, Your User |D details are given below

Manner of holding shares i.e. Your User ID is:

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in | 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digit Client ID

demat account with NSDL. For sxample if your DP 1D s IN300*** and Client |D is 12****** then your user ID is
IN3DO =1 2*=*=,

b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is
12&#“!-"“&.#

¢) For Membars holding shares in | EVEN MNumber followed by Folio Number registered with the

Physical Form. For example If folio number Is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID s
101456001

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given balow;
' a)lf you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password o login and cast yourvote.
bt you are using NSDL e-Voling system for the first time, you will need to retdeve the ‘initial password'
which was communicated to you, Once you refrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial
password' and the systerm will force you to change your password.,
¢) How to retrieve your 'initial password'?

(i) ¥youremail ID is registered In your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ Is communicated o
you on your email 1D, Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbax. Opan the email and open the
altachment i.e, a ,pdf file. Open the pdf file, The password to open the pdf file is your B digit client 1D for NSDL
account, last B digits of client ID for CODSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf fila
containg your ‘User ID° and your ‘initial password'.

{ii} I your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose
email ids are not registerad.
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6. |fyouarsunable toretrieve or hava not received the * Initial password” or have forgotien your password:

&) Click on “Forgot User Detalls/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDSL) option available on www.evating.nsdl.com,

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (f you are holding shares in physical mode) option awailable on

¢)If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.n mentioning your demat account numberffolio number, your PAM, your name and wyour
registered address alc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system
of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agrea to “Terms and Conditions® by selecting on the check box.

B. Now, you will have to click on "Login” button.

9. After you click on the "Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

mz,,;m:mm mmmm Hﬂi.!-’ﬁnﬂmm“

T hﬂnrmmﬁul lngnmStﬂp1 yﬁumllhﬂahlﬂlnmﬂl the companies “EVEN" in which you are holding shares
and whose voting cycle

2, Select “EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period Now you are
raady for e-\oting as tha Voting page opans.

3. Cast your vole by selecting appropriate options Le. assenl or dissent, verfy/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your voie and click on "Submit” and also "Confirm” when prompted.

4, Upon confirmation, the message “Vole cast successfully” will be displayed.

5, You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareheolders

1. Institutional sharehaolders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDFILIPG
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc, with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory(ies) who are authorized lo volte, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to shawmanoj2003@gmaill.com with a copy marked
to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2, Itis strongly recommended not 1o share your password with any other parson and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccassful atternpts to key in the correct password,
In such an event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password,

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual
for Shareholders available at the download saction of www.evoting nsdl.com or call on toll free no.; 1800 1020 880 and
1800 22 44 30 or send a request to (Mame of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ide are not registered with the depositories/ company for procuring user id
and password and registration of @ mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held In physical mode please provide Folio Mo., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share
cerificats (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar
Card) by email to (Company email id).

2, In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DP1D + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name,
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (salf
atlested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) o (Company amail id). If you are an Individual shareholdars holding securities in
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) Le. Login method for e-Voting far
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode,

3. Alternatively shareholderimembers may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-
voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4, In terms of SEBI circular dated December 8, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individuai
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Deposiiores and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to updata their mobile number and emaill ID comectly
intheir damat account in order to access e-Voting facility.
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OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

1. The remole a-voting period commencas on Sunday, 24th Seplember, 2023 (10.00 a.m. IST) and ends on Tuesday, 26th
September, 2023 (5.00 p.m, IST). During this period, Membaers of the Company, holding shares eithar in physical form or in
dematenalized form, as on Wadnesday, 20th September, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-valing
maodule shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The facility for voling during the AGM will also be made available.
Members present in the AGM through VC/OAVM and who have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remote e-
voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through the e-vating system during the AGM.

2. The vating rights of Membears shall be in proporion to their shares of the paid up equity share capltal of the Company as on
Wednesday, 20th September, 2023.

3. The Members who have cast their vote by remole-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/participate in the AGM through
VC/OAVM but shall not be entitied to cast thair vote again,

4. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and
holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login 1D and password by sending a request at evating@nsdl.co.in,
Howaver, if hedshe is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voling then he/she can use his/her existing User 1D and
password for casting the vate.

5. Mr. Manoj Prasad Shaw, Practicing Company Secratary (Membership No. FCS 5517), has been appointed as the
Sorutinizertoscrutinize the remote a-voting process ina fair and transparent mannar.

. The Scrutinizer shall , after conclusion of voling at the general meeting, first count the votes at tha meeting, thereafter
unblock the voles cast ihrough remote e-voling within stipulated timea from the conclusion of the remate e-voting period | in
the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make not |ater than 48 hours of
conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the
chairman of the meeting who will counter sign the same and declare the results of voting forthwith.

7. Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Wednesday, 20th
September, 2023, may opt for remote e-voting or voting at the AGM,

8. The result deciared along with the Scrulinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.globalbol com and
on the website of NSDL www.evoting. nsdl.com, immediately on declaration of result by the chairman and communicate {o
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) where the shares of the Company ara listed

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following explanatory Slatement pursuant to provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutary
modification({s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), sets out all material facts relating to the business
iterms of the accompanying Notice.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ITEMND, 3

Mr. Suresh Kumar Sharma was reappoiniad as the Whaole Time Director (Executive Chairman) by the Members at the 46th Annual
General Meeting of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect from 01st July, 2018, His term of 5 years has expired and he
shall attain the age of 75 years on 215t Oclober, 2023, Hence the Company seeks the approval of its members by way of a Special
Resolution for his reappointment as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a further period of 5 years with effect from 01st
July 2023,

Keeping in view that Mr, Suresh Kumar Sharma has a rich and a varied experience in the industry and has been involved in the
operations of the Company over a long period of ime, it would be in the interest of the Company to continue his employment in the
Company as the Whoie Time Director. His brief profile is given in the lable balow,

The Momination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company recommends the re-appointmeant of Mr.
Suresh Kumar Sharma, as the Whole Time Director (Executive Chairman) of the Company for a further period of 5 years w.e.l
(118t July, 2023, Further, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors at their respective meelings held on
May 30, 2023 have considered this proposal and recommended/ approved the remuneration payable to Mr. Suresh Kumar
Sharma, subject lo the approval of Members by way of Special Resolution.

This explanatory statement may also be read and freated as disclosure in compliance with the requiremeants of Section 190 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

His proposed re-appointment as a Whole-time Director will be subject to his re-appointment as a Director of the Company under
Item Mo 2 of the Notice.

Thla details of remunaration payable to Mr. Suresh Kumar Sharma and the terms and conditions of the re-appoinimant are given
below:

1) SALARY: Rs. 70,000~ p.m. and subjec! to periodical increments as may be approved by Nomination and Remuneration
Committes from time to time within the fimits prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 or any stalulory modification
thereof.

2) PERQUISITES: In addition to the aforesaid Salary the following perquisites will be allowad which will be restricted to an amaunt
so that the total of salary and perks shall not exceed Rs.24,00,000/- per annum,

i} Housing!/House Rent Allowance ;

(a) The expenditure incurred by the Company on hifing unfurnished accommodation for the Chairman (Executive) shall be subject
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ioa celling of 60% of the salary.

(b} In case the accommodation is owned by the Company, 10% of the salary of the Chairman (Executive) shall be deducied by the
Company.

(e} In case no accommodation is provided by the Company, the Chalrman (Executive) shall be entitied to House Rent Allowance
subject to a celling of 60% of the salary.

{d) The expenditure which may be incurred by the Company on Gas, Eleciricity, Water, Furnishings, Repairs, and other expenses
for maintaining in full the accommaodation occupied by the Chairman (Executive) restricted to 30% of the annual salary,

i) Medical Reimburseament / Medical Insurance Policy/ P.A Policy : Expenses incurred for the Chairman (Executive) and his
family inaccordance with  the rules of the Company.

i} Leave Travel Concession : For the Chairman (Executive) and his family to and fro to any place once in a year in accordance
with the rules specified by the Company.

v} Club Fees: Fees and subscription of maximum two clubs. This will notinclude admission and life membership fees.

v] Company's contribution towards Provident Fund / Super Annuation Fund or Annuity Fund : As per rules of the Company but to
the extent these either singly or put fogether to the axtent not taxable under the Income TaxAct, 1961,

Vi) Gratuity ; In accordance with the provisions of the approved fund but shall not excesd half month's salary for sach completed
yearof senice,

vil) Leave on full pay and allowances as per rulesof the Company but not exceeding one monih's leave for every completed yearof
sarvice subject to the condition that leave accumulated but not availed of will not be allowed to be encashed.

wviil) Use of Company's carwith driver for business of the Company,

in) Telephone at residence for business of the Company.

x) Rgh'lbursmnl of all emerzainment and travelling expenses aclually incurred by the Chalrman (Executive) for the business of
the Comparny.

The tems stated inv, vi, i, vill, ix and » shall nol be cansiderad as perquisites.

3) In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period the Company will pay the Chairman
{Exacutive) the same remuneration as mentloned heraln above.

4) The Board of Directors be and is hereby specifically authorized to alter and vary the tarms and conditions of the aforesaid
appointment including remuneration of Mr. Suresh Kumar Sharma so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory medification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force or any amendment
andior modification that may hereafter be made thereto by the Central Government in that behall from time to time, or any
amendment thereto as may be agraed to between the Boand and Mr. Suresh Kumar Sharma.

5) Mr, Surash Kumar Sharma agreed to devole his bast attention to the business of the Company and to further safeguard the
interest of the Company, including security of its trade secrets and the processes efc. and fo make known and available exclusivaly
1o the Company any invention, discovery or design of theirs,

@) The terms and conditions of the said appointment and/or agreement may be altered or varied from time to time mutually by the
Company and the Chalrman (being Whole-Time Director) subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment
thereof and with the approval of the Shareholders and/or Central Government, whenever required,

7) This agreement shall be subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company at a general mesting.

Mr. Surash Kumar Sharma may be desmed to be concarned or interested in the Resolutions appaaring in item no. 3 of this Notics.
Mone other Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relative is concerned or interested therain,

ITEMNO. 4

Mr, Himanshu Sharma was reappointed as the Managing Director by the Members at the 46th Annual General Mesting of the
Company for a period of 5 years with effect from 01st July, 2018, His term of 5 years has expired and hence the Company seeks the
approval of its members by way of a Special Resolution for his reappointment as the Managing Director of the Company for a
further pericd of 5 years with effect from 018l July 2023

Keaping in view that Mr. Himanshu Sharma has a rich and a varied experience in the Industry and has baen involved in the
operations of the Company over a long period of time, it would be in the interest of the Company to continue the employment of Mr.
Himanshu Sharma as the Managing Director of the Company, His brief profile is given in the table balow.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company recommends the re-appointment of Mr.
Himanshu Sharma, as the Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 5 yearsw.a.f. 015t July, 2023.

Further, the Nomination and Remunaration Committee and Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on May 30, 2023
have considered this proposal and recommended/ approved the remuneration payable fo Mr. Himanshu Sharma, subject fo the
approval of Members by way of Special Resolution,

This explanalory statement may also be read and treated as disclosura in compliance with the requirements of Section 130 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

The details of remuneration payable to Mr. Himanshu Sharma and the terms and conditions of the re-appointment are given balow:
1) SALARY. Rs. 300,000/ p.m. and subject 1o pericdical incramanis as may be approved by Nomination and Remunaration
Committee from time to time within the limits prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 or any statulory modification
thereof,

2) PERQUISITES: In addition ia the aforesaid Salary the following perquisites will be allowead which will be restricled to an amaount
g0 that the total of salary and perks shall not excead Rs.48,00,000/- per annum.

i) Housing ! House Rent Allcwance;

{a) The expenditure incurred by the Company on hiring unfurnished accommaodation for the Managing Director shall be subjecttoa
calling of 60% of the salary.
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{:lén case the accommodation is owned by the Company, 10% of the salary of the Managing Direclor shall be deducted Dy
theCompany.

{c) In case no accommodation is provided by the Company, the Managing Director shall be entitted to House Rent Allowance
subject o a ceiling of 60% of the salary.

{d} The expenditure which may be incurred by the Company on Gas, Electricity, Water, Furnishings, Repairs, and other expenses
for maintaining in full the accommaodation occuplad by the Managing Director restrictad to 30% of the annual salary.

i) Medical Reimbursement [ Medical Insurance Policy! P.A Policy @ Expenses incurred for the Mg, Director and his family in
accordance with the rules of the Company.

iii) Leave Travel Concession : Forthe Managing Director and his family 1o and fro to any place once in a year in accordance with tha
rules specified by the Company.

W) Club Fees | Fees and subscription of maximum two clubs. This will not incluede admission and life membership Tees.

v] Company's confribution towards Provident Fund / Super Annuation Fund or Annuity Fund : As per rules of the Company but o
the extent these either singly or pul together (o the extent not taxable under the Income TaxAct, 1961,

wi) G';'fatut!.y ¢ In accordance with the provisions of the approved fund but shall not exceed hall manth's satary for sach completed
year of senvice.

wil) Leave an full pay and allowances as per rules of the Company but not exceeding one month's leave for every completed year of
sarvice subject to the condition that leave accumul — lated but not availed of will not be allowed to be encashed.

viil) Use of Company’s car with driver for business of the Company.

i) Telephone at residence for business of the Company,

¥} Reimbursement of all entertainment and traveling expenses actually incurred by the Managing Director for the business of the
Comparny.

The items stated in v, vi, vii, viii, ix and x shall not be considered as perquisites,

3} In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period the Company will pay the Managing
Diractor the same remuneration as mentionad herein above.

4) The Board of Directors be and is hereby specifically authorized to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the aforesaid
appointment including remuneration of Mr. Himanshu Sharma so as nol lo exceed the limits specified in Scheduis V 1o tha
Companies Acl, 2013 including any stalutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force or any amendment
andfor modification that may hereafter be made thereto by the Central Government in that behalf from time to time, or any
ameandmeant therato as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Himanshu Sharma,

§) Mr. Himanshu Sharma agreed to devote his best attention to the business of the Company and to further safeguard the interest
of the Company, including secunity of its trade secrets and the processes aic. and to make known and available exclusivaly to the
Company any invention, discovery or design of theirs,

) The terms and conditions of the sald appointment and/or agreemant may be altered or varied from time 1o time mutually by the
Company and the Managing Director subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 orany amendment thereof and with the
approval of the Shareholders and/or Central Government, whenever required.

T) This agresmant shall ba subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company at a general mesting.”

Mr. Himanshu Sharma may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the Resolutions appearing In item no.3 of this Motice. None
other Director or Key Managenal Personnel of the Company or their relative is concerned or interasted therein.

ITEMNO: 5

The Company has received from Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rai (DIN: 01587531) (i) consent in writing to act as a director in Form DIR- 2
pursuant o Rule B of Companias (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (i) Infimation in Form DIR 8 in terms of
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Direciors) Rules 2014, (o the effect that he is not disqualified under sub section (2} of
Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and (iii) a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in
sub section 6 of Saction 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, he is registered with the Independent Directors’ Databank a
required under the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under. The resolution seeks the approval of members for the
appolntment of Mr, Sanjay Kumar Rai (DIN: 01587531) as a non-execulive Indepandent Director of the Company up to 26th
September, 2028, pursuant to saction 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there
under, He is not liabie to retire by rotation. His brief profile is given in the table below, The Board of Directors in recommendation with
its Nomination and Remuneration Commiltee, recommends the approval of the ordinary resalution.

MNone of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relalives are concerned or interested, financial
or otherwisa, in the resolution set out at ltem No, 3.

Office: By the Order of the Board
Plot No-5, Sector-25 BHAGAWAT! OXYGEN LIMITED
Ballabhgarh ,
Haryana-121004 RITU DAMANI
COMPANY SECRETARY
Date: 30.05.2023 ACS: 35435
Place: Kolkata
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS RECOMMENDED FOR APPOINTMENT /| RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED
UNDER REGULATION 3&(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT) REGULATIONS, 2015 :

Mame of the Director Mr. Suresh Kumar Sharma Mr. Himanshu Sharma Mr. Sanjay Kumar Ral
{DIN: 0004 1150) (DIN: D004 1181) (DIN: 01587531}
Date of Birth (Age in years) | 21st October, 1948 28th October, 1871 17th January, 1969
(about 75 years) (about 52 years) (54 years)
Date of First Appointment 10th July, 1872 26th August, 1996 Mot Applicable
Expertise in specific Expartise in the field of Expertise in the field of Experience of about 25
functional area Finance (Experience of manufacturing (Experience | years in Secretarial,
(Experience in years) more than 51 Years) of more than 27 years) Finance, Legal and
Statutory Compliance
across Real Estale, Iron
& Steel, Hospital &
Media Companies
Qualifications Graduate (BCOMIHONS)) B. Engg Fellow Member of the
Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (CSI1)
Mermber of the Indian
Institute of Insalvency
Professionals of Institute of
Chartered Accountants of
India (P of ICAIL)
Qualified tha anline
proficiency self assessment
Test for independent Director
conducted by IICA
B.Com. (Hons.) & BA from
University of Calcutta
Post Graduate Diploma in
Hospital Managemeant
Post Graduate Diploma in
Financial Management
Post Graduate Diploma in
Human Rights
Cenrtification Coursa in
RERA form ICSI.
Cerification Course in
GST form ICSI
Shareholding in the 267651 72,800 NIL
Company (either personally
or on baneficial basis)
List of other Companies BHAGWATI STEEL MIL MIL
in which Directorship held | PVT LTD
Chairman/Member of the NIL MIL MIL
Committees of the Board
across all Public
Companies in which
he is a Director
Chairman/Member of the Chairman MIL Chairman and member of NIL
Committees of the Board Member NIL the Audit Commities
of the Company {Chairman of the Company) Mot Applicable
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Disclosure of relationships | Father of Mr. Himanshu San of Mr, Suresh Kumar Mot Applicable
between Directors inter-se | Sharma, the Managing Sharma, the Chairman and
and other Key Director of the Company the Whole-Time Director of
Managerial Personnel and Father-in-law of the Company and the
Mrs. Jaya Sharma, the Husband of
Director of the Company Mrs. Jaya Sharma, the
Director of the Company
Terms and conditions of Reappointment pursuant to | Reappointment pursuant to | Appointment as an
appointment / ratiremeant by rotation and expiry of term as the independent director of
reappointment expiry of term as the Managing Director the Company
Whaola-time Director
Remuneration sought to Details as per Annexure-V Details as per Mot Applicable
be paid | last drawn of the Direclors’ Repor Annexure-V of the
Directors’ Report
Number of Board Meetings | Disclosed in the Disclosed in the Mot Applicabila
attended during the year Directors' Report Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 515t Annual Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023,

1. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS: (Rs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Total income 1,70,72,114.00 | 1,67.35817.00
Finance cost 72,62,404.00 68.71,524.00
Depreciation & amortization 1,66,41,838.00 | 1,78.88.506.00
PET (2,61,44,158.00) | (3.00,27,394.00)
Tax expense (19,20,865.00) {18,38,520.00)
PAT (2,42,23,293.00) | (2.81,88 874.00)
Surplus- opening balance 403,67,110.00 | 6,53.236.216.00
Surplus- closing balance 1,61,43,817.00 | 4,03.67,110.00

2. THE STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS:

The revenue from operations during the year amounted to Rs. 68.30,755 whereas in the previous year it amounted to Rs.
1,07 06,390, The total income has increased from Rs. 1,67 35,917 in the previous year to Rs. 1,70,72,114 during the financial year
2022-23, Even though the Company has Iincurred loss during this financial year also, the amount of loss after providing for financial
charges, depreciation, current and deferred taxation and other adjusiments, has decreased to Rs, 2,42.23,293 than Rs.
281,688,874 inthe previous year. The Company is striving its best to cope up with all the losses and damages it had 1o go through
the past years and we are hoping of better results in the futura,

3.DIVIDEND:

The Board did not declare any dividend owing to loss suffered by the Company and considered it prudent to conserve the
resources for the Company's growth and expansion and accordingly dogs not recommend payment of any dividend on the equity
shares for the financial year under review.

4. TRANSFERTO RESERVES:
The Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserves, during the year.

5. STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with referance o financial statemants. During the year, such
conirols were tested and no reportable or matedal weakness in the design or operation was observed,

6. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:

Industry Structure and Development:

Your industry is primarily a “gas manufacturing industry” supplying cxygen gas on exclusive supply scheme basis. However, the
Company is also angaged in wind power and specially gases and cylinders from which the Company has bean making urmaver.

Oppartunities & Threats, Trends & Strategies:

The fundamental of the gas indusiry appears to be better and is growing fast because of the improvemeant in the stesl sector, As our
sales are tied up some strategies adopted by your Company are ; (a} reducing cost of capital (b) transactional cost of production (o)
reducing pollution levels (d) creation of good infrastructure etc. Your Company has laken adequate steps to reduce the cost of
production by continuously evaluating process improvements and best operational practices. Although the industrial gas industry
is categorized under white category, your Company is committed (o adhere lo all applicable environment regulations and improve
upan the environmental performance on a continued basis,

Outlook:
The encouraging growth on both production and sales in this year is likely to be sustained in the fulure years also. Outiook for the
current year remains strong. The Company's operations are subject to risks which can impact business performance essentially

with regard to prices of basic materials like molecular sieves, power. The management is seized of assessing such risks and takes
measures to address the sama.
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Internal Control System :
The Company has adequate intemal cantrol proceduras commensurate with its size and nature of business. The objective of
these procedures is to ensure efficient use and protection of the company resources, accuracy in financial reporting and dua

compliance of stalutes and company policies & procedures, Checks and balances exist in the system to ensure that all
tranzactions are adequately authonzed and reported corracitly,

Risks & Concerns:

The Company’s operations are subject to risks which can impact business performance essentially with regard to demand from
customars and prices of basic materials. The managemant assesses such risks and takes measures to address the same. Tha
Company is committed to adhere toall applicable anvironmeant regulations and improve upon the environmental peformance on a
continued basis.

The Company appreciates that human assets constitute the driving force behind the Company's growth plans. The Company has.
during the year, continued to have good industrial relations with its employees. Your Company would like to record the whole-
hearled support and dedication received from the employees at all levels,

Cautionary Statement ;

Statement in the Managemenl Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's position and expectation may be
“forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws & regulations. Actual results could differ materially
from those expressed or implied. Important faclors that could make a difference 1o the Company's operation include, among

others, economic conditions affecting demand/ supply, changes in Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes and
incidental factors.

7. SHARE CAPITAL, LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE AND DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:
The Company is listed with the BSE Lid and confirms that it has paid the annual listing fees for the year 2022-2023 to the BSE Ltd.
During the yvear under review, there was no change in share capital of the Company.

49.49% of the Company's paid up Equity Shares Capital ks in dematerialization form as on 31st March, 2023 and balance 50.51% is
in physical form. The Company's Registrar's and Share Transfer Agents are M/s Skyline Financial Services Pyt Ltd having their
office at D-1534A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-l1, New Dalhi- 110020.

8, NUMEBER OF MEE TINGS OF THE BOARD;

During the financial year 2022-23, 5 (five) maatings of the Board of Directors of the Company wera held on 27th May, 2022, 12th
August, 2022, 14th November, 2022, 14th February, 2023 and 10th March, 2023,

2. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
We ragret to report the sad demisae Mr, Jagdish Chandra Kaushik (DIN: 01045425, a non- execulive, independent director of tha
Company, on 30,12.2022,

The Company proposes to appoint Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rai (DIN: 01587531) as a non- executive independent director of the
Company al the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, on the basis of the recommendation made by the Nomination
and Remuneration Commitiee of the Board of Directors of the Company, The Company has received a consent in writing from Mr.
Sanjay Kumar Ral to be appointed as an indepandent director and a declaration under section 149 of the Act, that he meets tha
criteria of independence, is eligible to be appointed as an independent director of the Company and is registered with the
Independent Direclors' Databank and has qualified the self proficency test as required under Rule 6(1) of the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014

Further, the term of Mr. Suresh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 00041150) as the Whole-time Director of the Company shall expire on
30.06.2023. The Nomination and Remuneration Committes and Board of Directors al their respective meelings held on May 30,
2023 have considered the proposal and recommended to reappoint him for a further period of 5 years with effect from 01.07.2023
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and approved the remuneration payable to him, subject to the approval of Members by way
of Special Resolution,

Similarly, the term of Mr. Himanshu Sharma (DIN: 00041181 }as the Managing Director of the Company shall expire on 30.08.2023.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors at their respective meatings held on May 30, 2023 have

considerad the proposal and recommended to reappaint him for a further period of 5 years wilth effect from 01.07.2023 at the

;i:rumlla ﬁﬂglﬁlgl:ﬂ Emm Meeting and approved the remuneration payable to him, subject to the approval of Members by way of
ecial ution,
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Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Suresh Kumar
Sharma (DIN: 00041150), director of the Company, retires by rolation al the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible
has offerad himself for re-appointmant.

10. DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Independent Directors of the Company have given the Declaration of independence to the Company stating that they meet the
criteria of Independence as mentioned under Section 148(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

11.DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Inaccardance with the provisions of Section 134{5) of the Companies Act 2013, ihe directors confirm that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the applicable accounting
standards had been foliowad along with proper explanation relating to material depariures, ifany;

b. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a trua and fajr view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March,
2023 and of the Inss of the Company for period from 1 Apnil 2022 1o 31 March 2023;

t.  The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
olher irregularities;

d. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 on a going concem basis;

e. The Director had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
contrals are adequate and were operating effectively;

f.  The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
syslems were adequate and operating effectively.
12. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee of the Board are comprised of Mr. Himanshu Sharma, Mr. Bipin Binari Lal and Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rai shall also be

a member, If appointed. Mr Himanshu Sharma is an Executive DirectorManaging Director and Mr, Bipin Bihar Lal and Mr, Sanjay
Kumar Rai being Independent Directors, All the recommendations made by the Audit Commitiee were accepted by the Board,

During the Financial Year 2022-23, 5 (five) meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors were held on 27th May, 2022,
12 August, 2022, 14 Novembar, 2022, 14 February, 2023 and 10th March, 2023,

13. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Thea Momination and Remuneration Commitiee of the Board are comprised of Mrs. Jaya Sharma, Mr. Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr, Mr.
Sanjay Kumar Rai shall also be a member, if appointed. Mra Jaya Sharma is a non-executive Director and Mr. Bipin Bihari Lal and
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rai baing Independent Directors.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, 1 (One) meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors
wers hald on 27th May, 2022,

14. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Stakeholder Relationship Commitlee of the Board are comprised of Mrs. Jaya Sharma, Mr. Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr. Sanjay
Kumar Rai shall also be a member, if appointed. Mrs Jaya Sharma being a non-executive Director and Mr. Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr
Sanjay Kumar Rai being Independent Directors.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, 1 (One ) meeating of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors were held
on 27th May, 2022.

15. VIGIL MECHANISM:

In pursuant to Section 177{89) of the Act, 2013 and Rules mada thare under, the Company has in place a policy on vigil mechanism
for enabling the directors and employees of the Company to report their genuine concerns, if any and also provides for adequate
safeguards against viclimization of parsons using the machanism,

16. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Company has put in place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committesa of
the Board, pursuant to Section 178(3) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The policy determinas the
qualifications, positive atfributes and independence of the Directors. The policy also deals with the remuneration for the directors,
key managerial parsonnel and employeas of the Company, The salient features of the policy are;
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(a) it ensures that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b} itensures that relationship of remuneration to performance is cear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

{c} remuneration to direclors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term perfformance objectives appropriate o the working of the company and its
goals.

There has been na change in the policy during the year. The detailed Nomination and Remunaration Policy of the Company
is disclosed in the website of the Company www.globalbol.com,

17.AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT:

Al the Fiftieth AGM held on 20th September 2022 the Members approved appointment of Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302 137E) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of five years from
the conclusion of that AGM fill the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of your Company to be held in year 2027 in
recommendation of the Audit committes of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Neotes on Financial Statement referred to in the Auditor's Report are seff-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.
The Auditors’ Repor does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer. Further, the Statutory Auditors
have nol reported any incident of fraud including frauds under section 143(12) of the Companias Act, 2013, during the year under
review lo the Audit Committes of your Company,

18. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

The Board has appointed Mr, Manoj Prasad Shaw, Practising Company Secretary (FCS 4184, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the
financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 s annexed herewith marked as
‘Annaxure I'to this Report. The qualifications made by the secretarial auditor have been noted by the Board and it assures of batter
compliance in the future,

19. MATERIAL CHANGES OCCURREDAFTER END OF FINANCIAL YEAR:

The Campany has obtained tha approval of its members by way of special resolution passed on 14.04 2023, through postal baliot,
tosell a partofits assets, on a slump sale basis, in any manner as the Board may deem fit in the interest of the Company, to Phosnix
Equipment Corparation, a New Jersey corporation with its office at 130 Maple Avenue, Unit 4A, Red Bank, NJ 07701, USA, fora
FOB consideration of Eight Hundred Sixdy-Nine Thousand Two Hundred US Dollars (LSS 869,200), on such terms and conditions
as may be deemed fit by the Board, in compliance to the provisions of Sections 180(1){a). 108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.

20. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The information required under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, is provided in "Annexure |I' to this Repor.
21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The Company has not developad or implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are not
applicable to the Company as per section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013,

22. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

With reference to the provisions of Section 134(3)n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has developed a risk
management plan of the Company and had identified the key risk areas where the Company's business is vulnerable, The key risk
areas are further categorized in the following:-

() Strategic Risks,
(b) Operational Risks and
(C) Financial and Compliance related Risks.
All the strategic, operational and financial risks are duly analyzed and taken care of.

The Directars are aware of the requirement of the risk mitigation plan and are continuously making the necessary efforts to redress
the impact of the adversities.

23. STATEMENT ON FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS
DIRECTORS, AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 ("the Act”), the Board carried out the padormance evaluation of its own and
that of A= Individual Directors through the Momination and Remuneration Committee of the Board (‘the Committee™), duly
constituted by the Board for the above purpose, in terms of the Act.
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During the year under review, the Commities made the padormancea avaluation as above, based on the following criterions, in line
with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company;
-Attandance and participation in the meetings;
- Preparedness for the meeatings;
- Understanding of the Company and the external environment in which it operates and
- Constructive contribution to Issues and active participation at meetings
The Committes found the Directors to ba fulfilling the above criterions.

The Board also condudied the performance evaluation of its various Committeas, based on references made (o the Committess,
in terms of the Act and found the performance to be satisfactory.

24. CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The Audit Commitiee reviews all the Related Parly Transactions, 1o ensure that the same are in line with the provisions of law and
policy. The committes approves the Related Party Transactions and all the contracts { arangemants f transactions entered by the
Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. During
the year, the Company had nol entered into any contract ! arrangement / transaction with relaled parties which could be considered
material in accordance with the palicy of the Company on matariality of related party transactions.

The details of the retated party transactions ane given in the Notes to the financial statements.

25. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return(s) are available at the website of the Company at hitp:iglobaibol. comioxygen/annual-reports
26. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investmenis coverad under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given
in the notes to the Financial Statements.

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The disclosure as required under Rule 5({1) of Companies {Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
enclosed with this report as "Annexure III'. The Company has not paid any remuneration attracting the provisions of Rule 5(2) of
the Companies {Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Hence, no information is required fo be
appanded to this report in this regard,

28. CORPORATE WEBSITE:
Tha Company maintains a wabsiie www.globalbol com where detailed information of the Company and its business is provided.
29. DISCLOSURES UNDER RULE 8(5) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014:
a) Financial summary or highlights: As detailed under the heading 'Summary of Financial Results'
b} Change inthe nature of business, ifany: Nona
c) Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, who were appointed or resigned during the year:
Directors/KMP Appointed: NIL

Directors/KMP resigned: Mr. Jagdish Chandra Kaushik (DIN: 01045425) ceased o be an indepandent director of the
Company owing to his demise on 30.12.2022,

d)} A statement regarding opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the
proficlency) of the independent directors appointed during the year: Mr. Bipinbihari Lal, an independent diractor of
the Company is associated with the Company for more than 20 years and is an expert in his fields with a vast experience.
Further he is also exempted from giving the online proficiency self-assessment test required under saction 150{1) ofthe
CompaniesAct, 2013, tis proposed to appoint Mr. Sanjay Kumar Rai as an independent director of the Company to fillin
the vacancy caused due to the death of Mr. Jagdish Chandra Kaushik, on 30122022,

e} MNames of Companies which have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, Joint Venture Companies or Associate
Companies during the year- NiL

f) Details relating to deposits: Thera wera no deposits covered under Chapter V of the Acl, accepled, unpaid or
unciaimed as al the end of the year, There is no defaull in repayment of deposils or payment of interas! thereon, There
has not bean any deposit, which is notin compliance with the requirements of Chapter V' of the Companies Act, 2013,
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1]

h)

n

k)

n

Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the regulators | Courts [ Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and your Company's operations in future: The Company had received a show cause notice from the
BSE Lid for not providing PAN Detalls of Promoters /| Dummy PAN for Promoters in Shareholding Pattern for the quarter
ended Dec-2022. The Company had duly replied the BSE Lid with proper explanations and reasons thereof,

Adeguacy of Internal Financial Control: The Company has an adequate system of intemal control procedura as
commensurate with the size and nature of business, which ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected against
loss and all transactions are recorded and reported comectly. The intemal control system of the Company is manitored and
evalualed by internal auditors and thair audit reports are periodically reviewed by the Auwdit Commities of the Board of
Directors, Theobservations and comments of the Audit Committee are placed before the Board for reference,

The scopea of intermal audit Includes audit of purchase facilities, zales promotion expenditure and Incentive scheme,
debtors and creditors policy, iInventory policy, VAT, CENVAT and GST matlers and others, which are also considered by
the Statutory Auditors while conducting audit of the annual financia! statements,

maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013; Maintenance of cost recards as specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, is not required by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records are not maintained.

constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: The Company has complied with the provisions ralating 1o the
constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, During the year, neither any complaints of sexual harassment were recelved by i,
norwere there any complaints relating thereto which required any disposal thereol.

the details of application made or any proceading pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31
of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial year: NIL

the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereaf: NIL

30. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Thea Board would like to express its sincere appreciation for the valuable support and co-operation received from various Central
and State Government Authorities, Stock Exchanges, Financial Institutions and Banks during the year. They also gratefully
acknowledge the support extended by the customers and shareholders and contribution made by the employees at all level,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata 5 K SHARMA,
Date; 30/05/2023

Chairman

(DIN: 00041150)
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ANNEXURE |
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.8 of the Companies (Appointment and Ramuneration of
Manageral Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Bhagawatl Oxygen Limited
Seclor 25, Plot No_ 5,
Ballabhgarh, Haryana- 121004

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of appiicable stalutory provisions and adherence to good corporate
practices by BHAGAWAT| OXYGEN LIMITED, {hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion theraon,
Based an our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and other records maintainad by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of the secretarial audit, we hereby report thal in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended 315t March, 2023 complied with the stalutory provisions listed heraundar and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place o the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hareinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and relums filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial yearended 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

{if} The Securities Contracts (Reguiation) Act, 1958 (SCRA) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Depositories Acl, 1986 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1830 and the rules and regulations made thare under to the extent of Foreign Direct

Investment, Oversaas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

{v) The following Reguiations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1982 (SEBI Act);

{8) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading ) Reguiations, 2015;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(&) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssus and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities ) Regulations, 2021;

{f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 1o an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1983

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client.
{9} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018.

(vi)We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations o the Company. The list of major
head/groups of Acts, Laws and Requlations as applicable to the Company are as follows -

|. Gas Cylinders Rula, 2004

1I, Static and Maobile Pressure Vessels{unfired) Rules, 1981

We have also axamined compliance with the applicabie clauses of the following:
(I} The Company has complied with the applicable Clauses of 55-1 (Secretanal Sandard on Meetings of the Board of
Directors) and 55-2 (Secretarial Standard on General Meetings) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Company has complied with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremants) Regulations, 2015 enlered into by the Company with the stock exchanges, subject fo observation made
hersunder:-

& The Company has not complied with the Regulation 31(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which mandates the Listed Entities fo ensure
that 100% of shareholding of promoter(s) and promoter group s in dematerialized form and the same s
maintained on a continuous basis in the manneras specified by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above,

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company Is duly constituted with executive, non-executive and independent directors except for a
shortfall in the non-executive and independent directors due to the sudden demise of Jagdish Chandra Kaushik {DIN:
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01045425}, on 30th December, 2022, who was a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company.

Adequate notice is given lo all directors 1o schedule the Board Meatings, agenda and detailed noles on agenda wera sent al least
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the mesting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting membsers’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes:

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, reguiations and guidelines,

We further report thal no such specific event! action took place during the year having a majar bearing on the Company's affairs in
pursuance to the laws, rules, regulations, guidetines, etc. referred lo above.

For Mfs Manoj Shaw & Co

Placa: Kolkata (Company Secretarios)
Date: 30.05.2023 Mano| Prasad Shaw
{Proprietor)

FCS No. 5517; C P No.: 4194
PEER REVIEW NO: 1243/2021
LIDIN: FOO551TEDOO419911

The report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - A and forms an integral part of this report.
Annexure - A

To,

The Members

Mis BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED
Sector 25, Plot No. 5,

Baltabhgarh, Haryana- 121004

Our repor of even date is to be read along with this letier.
Management's Responsibility:
1. Maintenance of Secretarial records s the responsibility of the management of the Company, Our responsibility is o
BXpress an opinion on thess secretarial records based on our audit.

2 We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obiain reasonable assurance about the
cormectness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis lo ensure thal comect facts
are refiected in Secretanal records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
forouropinion.

We have not verified the correciness and appropratensss of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company,
Wherever required. we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
reguiations and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws. rules, regulations, standards s the
responsibility of management. Our examination was fimited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as o the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the managament has conducted the affairs of the Company,

@t s

. For Mis Mang Shaw & Co
Place: Kolkata {Company Secretaries)
Date: 30.05.2023 Manoj Prasad Shaw

{Praprietor)

FCS No. 5517, C P No.: 4194
PEER REVIEW NO: 1243/2021
UDIN: FOOS51 FEODO418511

ANNEXURE- Il
Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required to be disclosed
under saction 134 of the Companies Act, 201 3 read with Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014

(A) Conservation of Energy:

(a) Energy conservation steps taken:

+Energy conservation continues to receive priority attention at all levels.

+Factories have implemented measures to maintain power factor above 0,98 to reduce reactive power loss,
+Gradual replacement of high energy illumination by lower power consuming illumination in working area.
+Replacement of opagque sheets with transiucent corrugated sheets to allow more natural light,
+Continuous effort to reusefrecycle ground waler,
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(b) Additional investment proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy: NIL
(c)impact of measures of (a) & (b) for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on cost of production of goods:
+Reduction In specific power usage per unit of output to be realized in coming years,

(d) Energy conservation in respect of specified industries: NA

(B} Technology Absorption

Ressarch & Development (R&D)

1. Efforts and areas in which R&D carried out:

+Tha Company is successfully doing improvement of product charactenistics.

+Developing processes o improve product cost structure.

2. Benefils derived as a result of the above efforis:

+Improved manufacturing afficiency with reduced losses & costs,

+improved quality and production mesting customar requirsmant.

3. Future Plan of Action:

+Increased focus on customized product deliverables aligning in line with strategic business pariners.

+improved process operation with reduced process wastage, debottienecking of processes, equipment and quality issues,
4, Expenditure on R&D: charged under pnimary heads of accounts.

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: (Amountin Rs. )

FY 2022-23 Fy2021-22

Foreign exchange outgo
Foreign exchange eaming . -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

3 K SHARMA

Piace: Kolkata
Date: 30V05/2023 Chairman
{DIN: 00041150)

ANMEXURE- I

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATON AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014,

i} The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial
year 2022-23 and raftio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for tha
financial year 2022-23 are as under;

5L Name of Director/ Remuneration of Director KMP | % increase in Remuneration in Ratio of remuneration of each
Ne.|  KMP and Designation for Financial Year 2022-23 (Rs.) | the Financial Year 202223 u“'“m’ MP['" Mackn

1 | Mr. Himanshu Sharma, MD 18,00,000.00 0 11.20

2 | Mr.Suresh Kumar Sharma, WTD 4,20,000.00 o 2.61

3 | Mr. Sukania Bhaliacharjes, CFO 3,25,647.00 0 2.03

4 | Ms. Ritu Damani, CS 1,50,000.00 0 L

MNote: No other Director ather than the Managing Director and Whole Time Director received any remuneration other than sitting
fees during the financial year 2022-23.

ii} Inthe financial year, there was an increase 0f 9.35% in the median remuneration of emplovess.

i} There were 19 parmanent employees on the rolls of Company ason March 31, 2023.

iv) The Average percentage decrease made In the salaries of empioyess other than the managerial personnal in the financial

year 2022-23 was 13.14% whereas percentage change in the managerial remuneration forthe said financial year was NIL.

v} Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration pald during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 is as per the Remuneration

Policy of the Company.

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors

5 K SHARMA

Piace: Kolkata
Date; 30/05/2023 Chairman
{DIN: DO041150)
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To

The Members of

Bhagawati Oxygen Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have sudited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Stalements of Bhagawali Oxygen Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as al March 31, 2023, the Staterment of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Stalemant of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Motes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred
toas “Ind AS Financial Statemeants”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act ”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
wiew in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its Loss {including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Ind
AS Financial Statements” section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India("| CAI") together with the ethical requiremenis that are relevant to our audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thareunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
respansibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Ky audit matters are those matters thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements of the curment period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a
whiole, and in forming our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on thesa matters. We have determinad thal
there are no key audit matiers to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Ind ASFinancial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors s responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Report of the Board of Directors, Extract of Annual Returns, Directors Responsibility Statement and other annexure
to Directors Report including Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor's
report there on. Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statemants does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind ASFinancial Statements, our responsibifity is to read the other information and in doing so,
consider whether tha other information ks materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we condude that there is a
materal misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility forthe Ind AS Financial Statements

TheCompany's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these Ind AS Financial Statements thal give a true and fair view of the financial position and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles genarally accepted in India, inoluding tha accounting standards specified under Section
133 of the Acl. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Campany and for prevenling and detecting frauds and other irregularities; salaction
and application of appropriate accounting poficies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of tha Ind AS Financial Statermants that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, the Board of Direclors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Direclors either intends fo liquidate the Company or o cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but o do so.

The Board of Directors are aiso responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our abjectives are o oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whale are frea from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;, and 1o issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing
{S5As) will always detacl 8 material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can anse from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usars taken
on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit, We also:

@ ldentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a materal misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intenticnal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal controi;

& Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the awdit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143{3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsibie for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate intemal financial controls system with reference 1o Ind AS Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectivensss of such controls;

@ Evaluale the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosuresin the Ind A5 Financial Statements made by management:

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concerm,. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw
attention in our auditors’ report, Our conclusion are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of auditor's report
howevar, fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

® Evaluaie the overall presentation, structure and content of the IndAS Financial Statements, including the disciosures, and whether
the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underying transactions and evens ina manner fhat achieves fair presentation.

Matenality is the magnitude of missiatements in the Ind AS Financial Siatements thal. individually or in aggregate, makes it probabie
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS Financial Statements may be Influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuls of our
work: and (i) to evaluate the efect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant auditfindings, including any significant deficiencies in intermal control that we identify during our audit.

We alzo provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance In the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matiers. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless aw or regutation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
axtramely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the advarse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be axpecied o outweigh the public interast benefilts of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in lerms
of sub-section {11) of zection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure-A", a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further o our comments in the anmaxune refemed toin the @ragraph above, as required by Section 143(3) of thedct, we report that:

.
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Slatement of Profil and Less (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Siatemenis comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act,

a) On the basis of written representation received from the diractors as on March 31, 2023, and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as director in lerms of Section
164 (2)of the Act.
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al

h)

With respect 1o the adequacy of the intarnal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B". Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control;

With respect to the other matters to be included in theAuditor's Report in accordance with the requirement of section 187(16)
aof the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given 1o us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 157 of theAct.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Repaort in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies | Audit

and Auditors) Rules, 2014and subsequent amandments therelo, in our epinion and to the best of our infarmation and
according to the explanations given lo us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS Financial Statements -
Raofer Note no. 34 o the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statemants;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses:
iii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the

Company.

iw.

a, The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and befief, no funds have been advanced or
lcaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shalk:

# directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) by or on bahall of the Company or

® provide any guaraniesa, securily or the like 1o or on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiarias,

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (*Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whather recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiarias”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

® provide any guaraniee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice thal has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (ivia) and (b) alone
contain any matarial mis-statemant,

v. The Company has not deciared or p aid dividend during the year.

FOR CHATURVEDI & CO :-.ﬂ Chaturvedi
Chartered Accountants -_'m"". -ﬂl 12705 Place- Kolkata
(Firm's Registration No.302137TE) UDIN: -23012T05BGWLYLT915 Date- 30th “I'f, 2023

“Annexure-A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in Paragraph (i) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our Independent
Auditors’ Report]

{i)In respect of the Comp any's property, plant and equipment, nght-of-use assets and intangible assets;

(a)

{b)

(c)

(d)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situations of
Property, Planl and Equipmen,

{B) The Company has no intangible assets.

As per the information and explanations given o us and on the basis of our examination of the record of the Company,
the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the managemant during the yaar, which in our
opinion is reasonable, having regard 1o the size of Company and nature of its business, No discrepancieshave baen
noticed on the physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the Title desds
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising immovabile properties of land and building are in the name of
the company as on the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment during the year,
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(e)

() (a)

(b)

{if)

(v

()

(i

(i)
ia)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, there are no procesdings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
of Benami Property (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

As informed the inventories of the Company, have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the frequency of such verification ks reasonable
and procedures and coverage as followed by management wers a igte. Mo discrepancies were noficed on
verificalion balween the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregale for each class of
imvantory,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Eglﬂpanﬁ. the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from

nancial institution on the basis of security of current assels.

Acoording to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured
lo companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act. 2013 as such provisions of paragraph 3(iii) of the said order are nol applicable.

in our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the C any has, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees, and securty, complied with the provisions of section 185and 1 the Act.

The Company has nol accepled any deposits or amounts which are deemed o be deposits from the public within the
meaning of sections 73 lo 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act. In respect of overdue earmast n_scngy deposils
and security deposits, Management is of the view that overdue eamest manay m and securnty deposits of
suppliers/contractors appearing in the books are in the nature of retention money for p nce of contracts for supply
of goods and services and accordingly, not o be trealed as deemed deposits by vidue of amendment in rule 2, sub rule
(1), clause (c) of the Companies (Accaplance of Deposits) Amendment Rules 2016

Based on the information available and explanations given to us, the maintenance of Cost records has not been specified
by the Central Govemment under section 148( 1) of the Companies Act. 2013 for any of the products manufactured by the
company,

In raspect of statutory dues:

According lo the information and explanations given (o us, during the year, the Company has generally been regular in

depositing with appropriate authoriies undispuled statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,

W‘Sﬁt& Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess
other matenal statutory dues as applicable to it

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Incoma Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
stalutory dues in arrear as al March 31, 2023 for a penod of more than six months from the date they became payabie,

According 1o the information and explanations given to wus and as per the records of the Company examined by us, the
particulars of dues of Sale tax, Income tax and Central excise, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute
as al March 31, 2023are given balkow:

Scnal

Mo

Name of the Wature of Aot Period to which tha Fomim whers
Statyites dies (I INE} aimount relales precliing
=R

1

Central Excise Act Central Excise 7,97,16,430 2010-2011 to 2017-18 | CESTAT, Kolkata

2

Walue Added Tax Value Added Tax (VAT) 5,681,251 2018-20 JCCT, Jamshedpur

(Vi)

(Ix) (&)

(b)
()
(d)

(e)

(fi

(x) (a)

According to the information and axplanations given to us and on the basis of our axamination of the records of the Company,
there were no transactions relating 1o previously unrecorded income that have bean surrendered or disclosed as incame
during the year in the lax assessments under the Income TaxAct, 1961 (430f 1961).

In our opinion and on the basks of information and explanations given o us by the management, we ara of the opinion that
Evad{.':nrnpﬂny has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest therecn to any
nider.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank arfinancial institution or other lendar,

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the company has nol raised any fund on short- term basis,

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial
Statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from arr¥ entity or person on account of
or ta meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures, Accordingly, clause 3(x)(e)of the is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidianies or joint ventures. Accordingly,
clause 3{ix){T) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised agz muna? by
xfa)of the

Wﬂaof initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrumants) during the yearas such, clause
Order is not applicable.
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(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

{xii)

(i)

(Xivia)

{b)
(xv)
{ievi)

(a)

(b)

e
(d)

(i)
i)

(i)

(xx)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not made any preferential aliolment or private placement of shares or fully or parly or optionally
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given
to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company
or on the Company has been noticed or raporied during the coursa of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no raport under sub-section (12) of Sedtion 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 ofCompanies (Audit and
Auditors ) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govermmant.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints have been received by the
company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as such, reporting under clausas 3(xii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable
o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Comparny,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the Mote No. 38 of Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

The company is having Internal Audit Depariment responsible for carrying out the intermal audit as per the approved audit
plan. The internal audit system adopted by the intemal audit departmeant is commensurate with the size and nature of the
business of the company,

We have considered the internal audit reparts for the year under audit, submitted by Internal Audit Department to the
Company during the year and fill date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management and based on
our examination of the recards of the Company, the Company has not entered info non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clauses 3(xv) of the Order are not applicabla,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
The Company is not required to be regisiered under section 45-18.of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934

The company has not conducted any Mon- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC ) as dafined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
The Group does not have any CIC.

Accordingly, clauses 3(xvi) {a), (b), (c)and (d) of the Order are not applicable,

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year of INR 1.03,12,320
and INR 60,26, 396 respectively.

Thare has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviil) of the Order is not
applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expectad
dates of realization of financlal assets and payment of financial kabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS
Financial Statements, our knowladge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncaertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of mesting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheel as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheel date,
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
raporting Is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

In our opinken and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, dauses 3(xxia) and 3(xx)b)
of the Order are not applicable,

FOR CHATURVEDI & CO 5.C. Chaturvedi

Chartered Accountants

Partner
M. No:-012705 Place- Kolkata

(Firm's Registration No.302137E) UDIN: 230127058GWLYL 7918 Date- 30th May, 2023
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“Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report”

[Referred ta in Paragraph (ii) (f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our Independent
Auditors’ Report]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements of Bhagawati Oxygen Limited (“the
Company”) as at March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's managameant is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemnal financial controls based on the imternal control
with reference 1o Ind AS Financial Statements crteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal
control stated in the Guidance Note ondudit of Intermal Financial Controls over Financial Reporing issued by tha Institute of Chartered
Acoountants of India (the "ICAI"), These responsibilifies include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequale intemal
firancial controls that ware operating affectively for ensuring the ordery and efficient conduct of its business, including adherenca to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assals, the prevention and detection of frawds and emrors, the accuracy and completaness
of the: accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under thedct,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with reference 1o Ind AS Financial
Staternents based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial confrols,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audil to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial confrol with reference to Ind ASFinancial Statements was
eslablished and mainiained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Cur audit imvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the interal financial controls system with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and their operaling effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS Financial Statements inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements, assessing the risk thal a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selecled depend on the auditors’ judgement, inciuding the
assessment of the risks of material misstalement of the Ind AS Financial Stalements, whather due to fraud or error.

We beligve that the audit evidence we have obtained ks sufficlent and appropniate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements

A Company’s infernal financial conirol with reference to Ind AS Financial Stalements is a process designed o provide reasonable
assurance regarding the raliability of financlal reporting and the preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements for exteamal purposes in
accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) perain to the maintenance of recaords that, in reasonable debil, accurately
and fairly refllect the transactons and dispositicns of the assek of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactons are
recaorded as necessary o parmit preparation of Ind AS Financial Stalements in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles, and that receipls and expenditures of the Company are baing made only in accordance with authorizations of managament
and directors of the Company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tmely detection of unauthorized
acguisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material efect on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind ASFinancial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of inlemal financial controls with reference to Ind ASFinancial Statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to ermor or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements
to future perinds are subject 1o the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial contrals with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and such intermal financial controls
with referance to Ind AS Financial Statemants were oparating effectivaly as al March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements critena established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Instifute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR CHATURVEDI & CO S.C. Chaturvedi
Chartered Accountants :"_ th: A Place- Kolkata
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2023 Amount in Rs.
Particulars NOTE As at As at
Assats NO March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Non-Current Assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipmant 3 52,569,276 70,518,215
b} Financial Assets

i} Investments 4 7,266,090 19,706,641
it} Other Financial Assats 5 16,985,307 6,959 887
) Other Non-Current Assets [
78,820,673 99,185,843
Current Assets
a) Inventories 7 213,862 213,862
b} Financial Assels
I} Trade Recelvables B 31,377,885 28,583,869
i) Cash and Cash Eguivalents 8 6,405,256 30521
fit) Other Bank Balances 10 6,101,323 15,385,458
i) Loans 1" 424,572 154,120
v) Other Finandial Assels 12 1,190,888 1,130,064
c) Other Current Assels 13 10.314.612 12,235 T54
56,028,398 58,008,338
Total Assets 1 157.194.181
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 14 23,129,690 23,129,690
b} Other Equity 15 18,667,613 43,448 449
41,797,303 66,578,139
Liabllities
Non-Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Barrowings 18 35,362,866 53,485,238
i) Other Financial Liabilities 17 504,797 1,788,468
b} Daffered Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 205,566 2.126.431
Esrﬁ 5l|ﬁg 5 I|IIEII!i
Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilties
i} Borrowings 18 28,773,623 21,511,970
ii) Trade Payables 20 5,678,260 5,786,559
lif) Other Financial Liabilities 21 769,228 716,497
b) Other Cumrent Liabilities 22 21,757,428 5,190,878
55975, 33205.508
Tetal Equity and Liabilities 134,849,071 157,194,161
Company Overview 1
Significant Accounting Policies &
Motes on Accounts 2-40
The accompanying notes form an ral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report attached of even
For FOR CHATURVEDI & CO
Chartered Accountants Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
(Firm's Registration No.302137E)
5. C. Chaturvedi Suresh Kr Sharma Himanshu Sharma
Partner Chailrman Managing Director
Membership No.: 012705 (DIN : 00041150) (DIN : 00041181)
Place: Kolkata .
Chisf Finance Officer Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 Amount in Rs.
Particulars NOTE For the year ended  For the year ended
NO March 31,2023 March 31,2022
l.  Income
Revenue from Operations 23 6,830,755 10,706,380
Other Income 24 10,241,359 6,029,527
Total Income 17,072,114 16,735,917
Il. Expenses
Cosi of Material Consumed 25 - -
Purchases of Traded Goods 26 2,455,569 4,642 436
Changes in Inventony of Finished Goods, Work in Progress & Siock in Tmd? - 177.843
Manufacturing and Operating Expanses 28 1,219,408 1,468,714
Employes Benefit Expenses 29 4,294 161 4 148,330
Finance Cosls a0 7,262,404 6,971,524
Depraciation and Amortisation Expense 3 16,641,838 17 B88 506
Other Expenses k. 11,342,892 11,465 858
Total Expenses 43 216,272 45,763,311
. Profitl{Loss) before Tax (26,144,158) (30.,027,384)
IV, Tax Expense:
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax (1,920,865) (1.838,520)
V. Profit{Loss) for the period (24,223,293) (28,188,874)
VI. Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be classified to statement of Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of defined post employment benefit plan 252 457 232,009
Incoma Tax Effect - -
VIl Total Comprehensive Income for the Year {23,970,836) (27,856 BES)
Earnings per Equity Share a3
Basic (10.47) (12.19)
Diluted {10.47) (12.19)
Company Overview 1
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts 2-40
The accompanying notes form an in part of the Financial Statements
As per our report attached of even
For FOR CHATURVEDI & CO
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(Firm's Registration No302137E)
§. C. Chaturvedi Suresh [ Sharma Himanshu Sharma
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.: 012705 (DIN : 00041150} (DIN : 00041181)
Dot & 301 tey 2023 Sukanta Bhattacharjee Ritu Damani
Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2023

a. Equity Share Capital Amount in Rs.
Balance at 1 April 2021 23,129,680
Changes in Equity Share Capital During the Year 2
Balance at 31 March 2022 23,129,690
Changes in Equity Share Capital During the Year =
Balance at 31 March 2023 23,129,690

b. Other Equity

Investment Retalned Other Deferred Incoma) Total Other
Capital | Allowance Earni Comprehensive| of Capital Equity

Reserve | Reserve Incoma Subsidy
Balance at 1 April 2021 1,500,000 50,029 65,336,216 | (1,140,599) 3,240,000 68,995 546
Profit(Loss) for the year - - (28,188,874) - - (28,188,874)
Other Comprehensive Income - - B 232,008 . 232,009
Addition during the year - - - . - =
Tax pertaining to earlier years - . 3.219,768 . - 3,218,768
Deduction during the year (B10,000) (810,000)
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,500,000 59,929 40,367,110 (908,580) 2,430,000 43,448 4459

Balance at 1 April 2022 1,500,000 59,929 40,367,110 (908,590) 2,430,000 43,448 449

Profit/{Loss) for the year - = (24,223,283) {24,223,203)
Other Comprehensive Income - 2 - 252 457 . 252 457
Additicn during the year - - . - - -
Tax periaining to earlier years - .
Deduction during the year - - - : (810,000) (810,000)
Balance at 31 March 2023 1,500,000 59,929 16,143,817 (656,133) 1,620,000 18,667,613
For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors
For FOR CHATURVEDI & CO
Charterad Accountants
(Firm's Registration No 302137E)
S. C. Chaturvedi Suresh Kr Sharma Himanshu Sharma
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.: 012705 (DIN : 00041150) (DIN : 0004 1181)
Place: Kolkata
Date : 30th May 2023 Sukanta Brﬂ'ﬂmlﬂm Ritu Damani
Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023 Amount in Rs.

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit/{Loss) before Tax (26,144,158) (30,027,394)
Adjustments far :
Finance Cost (Net) 6,534,781 5,067 449
Depreciation/ Amortisation 16,641,838 17,888 506
{Gain)Loss from sale of Fixed Assets (7.233,886) =
(Gain)/Loss from sale of mutual funds [557,874) (466,176)
{Gain) Loss on fair markel valuation on investment (196,4939) (1,045,539)
Dividend Income {59,575} 672,359
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes {11.&155‘:’3] mg_
(Increase)/ Decrease in :
Inventories - 177,843
MNon-Current/Current Financial and Other Assels (1,884,511) 457 400
Trade Payables, Other Financial Liabilities and Current Liabilities 15,953,439 1,204,060
Cash Generated from Operation 3,053,555 (7,416,210}
Direct Tax Paid - 3,219,768
MNet Cash flow from Operating Activities 3,053,555 4.1 EEE
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale of Fixed Assets/CWIP 8,603,704 =
Purchase of Fixed Assets/CWIP {61,717) (57.619)
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 13,194,924 3,308 12
Interest Recaived 666,799 1,955,257
Dividend Received 59,575 672 358
Net Cash used in Investing Activities 22 463,285 5 M"Tm_i
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment from Bormowings (18,132,372) (689,252)
Proceads from Borrowings 7,261,653 8,033,991
Interest Paid (8,546, 076) (9.012 212
Net Cash used in Financing Activities 19,416,795 1,6
Met Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 6,100,045 104,194
Cash & Cash Equivalents-Opening Balance 305,211 201,017
Cash & Cash Equivalents-Closing Balance 6,405,256 Jns2n

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
Ag per our report attached of even date

For FOR CHATURVEDI & GO

Chartersd Accountants For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors
{Firm's Registration No302137E)
§. C. Chaturvedi Suresh Kr Sharma Himanshu Sharma
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.: 012705 (DIN : 00041150) (DIN : 00041181)
Place: Kolkata
Date : 30ih May 2023 Sukanta Bhattacharjes Ritu Damani

Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary
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1. Company Overview

Bhagawati en Limited ("the Company”} is a public limited company incorporated in India, having its registered office situated
Plot 5, Sector 25, Ballabgarh, Haryana- 121004, The Company has its shares listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), Bhagawati
Oxygen Limited is a manufacturing and engineering company with core focus onindusirial gas manufacluring, technol , Syslem
and equipments.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

{a) Basis of Preparation

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 ofthe
Companies Act 2013 ("Act”) read with relevant Rules. Thesa financial statements are prepared in accordance with historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for cerain financial instruments which are measured at fair values,

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was caried out in accordance with Ind AS 101- First time adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principies generally accepted in India as
prescribed undar Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules which was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions
of the affect of the transition has been summarized in note 42.

{b) Use of Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measursment principles of Ind AS, requires
managemeant to make estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assels and liabilities, revenue and expenses
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Management believas that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Any
ravision to the accounting estimates is recognized prospectively.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most
significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the foliowing notes :
a) Measurament of Defined Benefit Obligations
b} Measurement and likelihood of the cccurrence of provisions and contigencies
¢} Recognition of the Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities
d} Key assumptions used in Fair Valuation Methods of Financial Assets & Liabilities
(c) Revenue Recognition
Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognized when all significant risks and rewards of their
ownership are transferred to the customer as per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
amount of the consideration that will be derived the sale of the goods and crm:;m:llrl collection. Revenue is measured at the
¥

fair valua of the consideration received or receivable and includes excise are net of returns and allowances, rade
discounts, volume rebales and sales tax,

Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established. Interes! income is recognized using
the effective interest method. Other claims (including claims of price escalation and minimum offtake guarantee) are recognized
when there is a certainty of realization and can be measured retiably.

{d) Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated af cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The
cosl of Property, Plant & Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and ofher non-refundable taxes or
levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assat to its working condition for its intended use, Interest and other financial
charges on loans borrowed specifically for acquisition of capital assels are capitalized il the start of commercial production.
Depraciation & provided on the straight line method over the estimated useful ives of assets and ara in ine with the requirements of
Part C of Schadule |l of the Companies Act, 2013, The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Building 30 Yaars
Plant & Machinery 8-25 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipment SYears
Vehicles BYears
Computer AYears

Advances paid \owards the acquisition of property, plant and equipmant cutstanding al each balance sheat dale is classified as
Capital Advances under other Mon-Current Assels and the cost of assets not put 10 use before such date are disclosed under
‘Capital Work in Progress’. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statemanis upon salke
or retiremant of the asset and the resullant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The method of
depreciation, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end.

{e) Intangible Asseats

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. infangible Assets acquired in a business
combination is valued at their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carmied at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of Intangible Assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for Impairment whenever there is an
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indication that the intangible asset may be impaired, The amorization period and the amortization method for an Inangible Asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at the and of each repoding period. The amaortization expense on Intangible Assats with finite
lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The Company amoriizes intangible assels over their estimated useful lives
using the straight line mathod.

Intangible Assets with indefinite useful lives are not amorized, but are tested for impairmant annually, either individualty or at the
cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite ife continues
to be supportabie. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

Gains or losses arlsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss whan the asset is
derecognized.

{F) Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when It becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, exceplt for trade receivables which
are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities, which are not 2t fair value through profit or loss, are added 1o the fair value on initial recognition,
Regularway purchase and sale of financial assets are accounied for at irade date.

Subsequent Measurement

a. Non Derivative Financial instruments

(i) Financial Assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
assel in order (o collect contraciual cash flows and the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that ane solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding.

{ii) Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Afinancial asset is subsequently maasured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting confractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instrumenis to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business modal,

(il Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss

Afinancial asset which isnot classified inany of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

(iv) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carmed al amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent
consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and less, For trade
and othar payables maturing within one year from the Balance Shest date, the camying amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments.

(v} Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries is carried al cost in the separate linancial statements.
b. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and opfion contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in exchange rates on forelgn currency exposures. Such dervative financial instruments are initlally recognized at fair
vaiug on the date on which a derivative contract is entered inlo and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit o loss
and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual righis to the cash flows from the financial assel expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 108, Afinancial liability (or a part of a financial
liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheel when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires

{g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriale in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 1o
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevani observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs, All methods
of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never aclually be realized.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categornzed within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markats for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3 — \Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobsarvable
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{h) Impairment
Impairment is recognized based on the following principles:

{i) Financial Assets: Tha Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial
asseis which are not fair valued through profit or loss, Loss allowance for irade receivables with no significant financing compornent
is measured al an amount equal to life time ECL. For ail other linancial assels, expected credil losses are measurad al an amount
equal to the 12 month ECL, uniess thera has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at life ime ECL. The amount of expected credil losses {or reversal)thal is required to adjust the loss allowanca at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impalrment gain or loss in profit or loss.,

(ii} Non-Financial Assets: Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are nol subject to amortization and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicate thal the carmying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assels camying amount excesds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less oosis of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of
A55A55ing iImpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assels (cash- generating unit) Non- financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of reponting period.

(i) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are racognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that a
cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent liabifites are
disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation or a present obligation and It is probable that a cash outfiow will not be
required to setfle the obligation. Provisions & Contingent Liabilities are revalued at each Balance Sheet date. Contingent Assets
ara nol recognized in the financial statements. However, when the realization of incomae is vifually cerlain, then the related asset s
nota contingent asset and ilis appropriately recognized,

() Imvantory

The inventories are valued atcost or net realisable value whichever is lower except for work in progress and advertising material
which are valued at cast, The Cost is calculated on weighted average method. Cost comprises expenditure incurrad in the normal
course of business in bringing such inventonies to its location and incfudes, where applicable, appropriate overheads based on
normal level of activity.

(k) Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupes. These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee,

Transactions in forgign currencies entered into by the company are accounted al the exchange rates prevalling on the date of the
transaction. Gains & losses arising on account of realization are accounted for in the Statament of Profit & Loss.

Monetary Assets & Liabilities in foreign cumancy that are uutslandin%at tha year end are transiated at the year end exchange rates
and the resultant gain/loss is accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

(1) Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities to a defined contribution reliremeant benafit

plan for qualifying amployeas, whaere the Company has no further obligations. Both the employees and the Company make
manthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, comprising of Gratuity fund with Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The Company's liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit mathod at the end of the year in accordance with
the provision of Ind AS 18- Employes Benefits,

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability, Gains and losses
through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liakility/(asset) are nized in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent periods. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assats, in excess of the yields computed
by applying the discount rate used 1o measure the defined benefil obligation s recognized in other comprehensive income. The
affects of any plan amendments are recognized in tha Statement of Profit& Loss.

Short term employes benafits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related services are rendered.
{m) Borrowing Costs

Bommowing costs directly attributable o the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of tima 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Bormowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enfity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also indudes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

(n) Leases

Leases under which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases,
When acquired, such assets are capilalized al fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the
lease, whichever is lower, Lease payments under operaling leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis in net
profitin the Statement of Profit & Loss over the lease term,
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{o) Government Grants

The Company recognizes govemmeant grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them shall
be complied with and the grants will be received, Grants related to assets are treated as defared income and are recognized as
other ncome in the Statemeant of profit & loss on a systemalic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Grants related (o
income are recognized on a systemalic basis over the perods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are
intended to compensate and are deducted from the expense in the statement of profit & loss.

{p) Income Taxes
Income Tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payabile and deferred Lax.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable pmﬂt{laxloashilora period. Taxable profit
differs from "profit before income tax” as reported in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehansive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current 1ax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax labilitles are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probabie that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be wilised. Such assels and labilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (ather than in a business combination) of other assets and llabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at ihe end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient laxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assel lo be recoveread. Unrecognised
deferred tax assels are reassessed at the end of each reportin rand are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be availabla 1o allow all or partof the deferred lax assel (o be recovered,

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apphy in the period in which the lability is
sefiled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profil or loss, except when they relate to ilems that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensiva
income or directly in equily respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivaleni in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shorl-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subjed to an insignificant risk of changes in valua,

(r) Earning per Share

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net prafit for the perod attributable to the equity sharehoiders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstending during the period, The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a nghts issue, share sphit, and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of aquity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

(s) Current and Non-Current classification

The Company presenis assets and labilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

Anassel is classified as current when itis:

i} Expected to be realised orintended to be soid or consumed in the normal operating oycle,

i) Held primarity for the purpose of trading,

iil} Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

Aliability is dassified as cument when it is:

i} Itis expected to be settied in the normal operafing cycle,

i) Itis due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting penod, or

ili} There s no unconditional right to defer settlement of the Hability for atleast iwelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabllities are classified as non-current,

Daferred tax assals and liabilities are classified as noncurrant,

(t} Dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
antity, on or bafora the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of tha reparting period.

(u) Segment Reporting

Revenue & expenses, assets & liabilities are identified 1o segmenits on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the
company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 4 Investments

Investment carried at Cost

Investments in Partnership Firm (Unquoted)
Anchor Enterprises

(i

Investment carried at Fair Value through P&L
Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
Bhagawali Gas Lid

80,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ sach (P.Y 80,000 equity shares)
Mutual Funds (Quoted)

Mippon India ETF Gold BEES

(82,500 units, P Y 92,500 units)

5Bl Gold GETS

(40000 units, P Y 40000 units)

HDFC Top 100

{2,891 units, PY 31,521 unils}

HOFC Balanced Advantage Fund

(2,117 units, P Y 48,213 units)

DSP Black Rock Equity & Bond

(2,484 units, P Y 56,613 units}

MNippon India Gold Savings Fund-G

(B2 units, P Y 58,079 units)

Tata Treasury Advantage Fund-G

(41 units, P Y 41 units)

(i)
Total (i+il)

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments & Market Value thereof
Aggregate amount of Unguoted Investments

Mote 5 Other Financial Assets (Non- Current)
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
{Unsecured, Considered Good)
Eamest Money Daposit
Security Deposits - with Others
- with Related Parties
Fixed deposit having original maturity mare than 12 months

Total

Note & Other Non-Current Assets
Capital Advances
Other Advances

Total

Note 7 Inventories

(Valued at Cost, unless otherwise stated)
Stock-In-Trade

Others (Cylindars)

Total

Note 8 Trade Receivables

Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
{Unsecured, Considered Good)

Trade Receivables

Total

Amount in Rs.
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
- 8,000,000
- 8,000,000
47,700 47,700
4,717,630 4,151,798
2,108,544 1,848,064
130,539 1,488,360
61,962 1,385,741
57,348 1,453 869
1,958 1,186,873
140,409 134,236
7,266,000 11,706,641
7,266,090 19,706,641
7,266,090 11,708,641
. 8,000,000
16,862 27,542
4,524,629 4,488 629
2,400,000 2,400,000
10,043,816 43 816
2,000,000 2,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000
3175 3,175
210,687 210,687
213 213,862
31,377,885 28,583 860
31,377,885 28,583 869
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule :

Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment |

(lii)Disputed trade recelvables-considered good
(iv)Disputad irade receivables-considered doubtful

(lindisputed trade receivables-considered doubtful

Particulars Less than| & months - More than| Total
6 months | 1 year 1'2“-"[2'3 3 years
(I{Undisputed trade receivables-considerad good 758,770 | 3,806,138 | 3,584,653 | 2,350,776 | 1,033,639 [11,533.976

19,843,909(19,843,909|

The contract for supply of gas belwean Hindustan Copper Lid (HCL) and the Company expired and nol renewed. Thus the gas
plant of the Company was closed. The minimum offfake guaranize amount receivable from HCL became subjudiced and the
Company preferred arbitration, An award dated 1-6-22 was passed In favour of the Company for its dues upto February 2020 and
pursuant o an order of the Hon'ble High Court dated 22-8-22 HCL has secured the award amount of Rs, 7.42 crores to the
Registrar, Caloutia High Court. Further, the Hon'ble High Court has apppointed a sole arbitrator to adjudicate further disputes from
March 2020 and onwards between HCL and the Company,

Mote 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
Batance with Banks

Cash in hand

Cheques in hand

Total

Note 10 Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposits {Onginal maturity of 3 1o 12 months)

Note 11 Loans (Current)

Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
{Unsecured, Considered Good)

Advances o Employee

Total

Mote 12 Other Financial Assets (Current)
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
{Unsecured, Considered Good)

Interest Receivable

Note 13 Other Current Assets
Balances with Excise & GST Department
Balances with Statutory Authority (1. Tax)
Advance to Related Party

Advances lo Cradilors

Total

Amount in Rs.
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
6.279,667 185,746
125,589 119,465
§.405.256 305,211
6,101,323 15,385,458
15,385,458
424,572 154,120

424,572

154,120

1,180,888 1,130,064
2,829 1,777.907
100,892 282,305

7,667,587 B.410,072

2,233,304 1,765,470

10,314,612 12,235,754
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As at As al
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Mote- 14 Equity Share Capital
Authorised Capital
4,000,000 (P ¥ 4,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 40,000,000 40,000,000

40,000,000

40,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

2,312,968 (P Y 2,312 969) equity shares of Rs. 10 sach 23,129,690 23,128,680
23,129 690 23,120,690

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
No of shares Hs. No of shares Rs.
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 2312969 23,129,690 2312968 23,129,680
Add: Share issued during the year = - = 5
Equity shares at the end of the year 2,312,969 23,129,690 2,312,969 23,129,690

b) Rights/preferencesirestrictions attached to equity shares

The company has anly one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitied 1o ona vote per share.In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assels of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year %Change during
S. No. Promoter Name No. of shares %o total shares 0 oar
1 Surash Kumar Sharma 267651 11.57 =
2 Tara Devi Sharma 137700 595 =
k] Himanshu Sharma 72800 3.15 =
4 Jaya Sharma 80500 3m x
5 Ramrup Sharma & Sons HUF £4000 2.77 =
-] Deapthi Sharma 78900 341 -
7 Wivek Sharma 41500 1.78 =
8 Suresh Kumar Sharma & Sons HUF 109000 4.71 -
9 Kanta Devi BEhardwaj 14485 0.63 -
10 Rakesh Samrat Bhardwaj 7740 0.33 =
11 Chetan Kumar Chaturvedi 125 0.01 -
12 Padmaja Bhardwai 2000 0.09 -
13 Kamaksh| Bhardwaj 2000 0.08 =
14 Mahash Mittal 150 0.01 -
15 B K Ratna Karan Karup & 1150 0.05 =
16 Ashok Kumar Garg 1075 0.05 -
7 Shachi Bhardwaj 150 0.01 =
18 Shyam Mohan 75 0.00 =
19 Hari Prasad Purba 75 0.00 =
20 Balwan Singh 75 0.00 -
21 Bhagawati Steel Private Limited 100325 4.34 -
22 Bhagwati Gases Lid 10000 0.43 =
Total 1001476 43.30
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As at As at
Note 15 Other Equity March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 1,500,000 1,500,000
Add: Addition during the period . =
Balance as at the end of the period 1,500,000 1,500,000
Investment Allowance Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 59,929 50,929
Add: Addition during the penod = -
Balance as at the end of the period 59,929 59,929
Retained Earnings

As per last Balance Sheet 40,367,110 65,336,216
Add: Tax peraining 1o earlier years - 3,219,768

Add: Profit{Loss) for the period 24 223,293 28.188.874
Balance as at the end of the period “Hﬂ.ﬂg 40,367,110

Other Comprehensive Income

As par last Balance Sheet {308,590) (1,140,588}
Add: Addition during the period 252 457 232,00
Balance as at the end of the period [656,133) 7908,590)
Deferred Income of Capital Subsidy
As per last Balance Sheet 2,430,000 3,240,000
Add: Addition during the period - -
Less: Daduction during the period (810,000} 810,000
Balance as at the end of the period 1,620,000 i’&'ﬁ'ﬂl
18,667,613 43,448 449

Note 16 Borrowings (Non- Current)
Financial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost

Secured

Term Loan From banks 53,680,295 66,943 438
Less: Current Maturities of

long term term loan 18,317,429 13,448 200

i .d!ﬁé

Term Loan from Bank is secured by way of ; (a) Exclusive hypothecation of plant & machinery and other moveable fixed assets of
the company’s both present and proposed project situated at Ghatsila, Jharkhand; (b) first morigage and hypothecation on the
company's windmill assets situated at Tirunehvelli, Tamil Nadu; (c) equitable mortgage of residential fiat situated at Kolkata, West
Bengal owned by Smi Tara Devi Sharma (d) escrowing of revenue stream of windmill operation and sale of oxygen and (a)
guaranteed by Sr S K Sharma, Sr Himanshu Sharma and Smt Tara Devl Sharma. Term Loan is payable in unequal instalmants
begining 31-3-2018.

Mote 17 Other Financial Liabilities (Non- Current)
Financial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost

Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 504,797 1,788 468
Total 504,797 1,788,469

WNote 18 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Related to tima difference of Depreciation on fixed assets 205,566 2126 4N
Total 205,566 2126431
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Note 19 Borrowings (Current)

Financial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost

Secured

From Banks

Cash Credit

Owverdrafl faciliies from banks under fien of TDR
Current Maturity of Term Loan

Total

Amount in Rs.
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
2,391,841 383,005
8,064,353 7 680,765
18,317 429 13,448,200
ZB,T?E-,EZE 21,511,9?9

* Cash credit from banks are secured by exclusive hypothecation over enfire stocks, book debts and other curnent assets of

the company. Interest Rate @ 11.85%

Mote 20 Trade Payables
Financial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost

Due to - Micro Small & Medium Enterprises (MSMED)

5,678,260 5,786,559

- Other than MSMED
Total 5,678,260 5,786,559
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule :
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than More than Total
1 year 1-2years | 2-3years 3 years
(iy MSME
(i) Others 2,103,786 1,962,845 sg127 823,502 5,678,260
{iil) Disputed dues-MSME
{iv) Disputed dues-Others
Note 21 Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Financial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Employee Benefits
(1) Salary 196,241 195,622
(i) Leave Encashment 382,828 362,849
(i) Medical Allowance 144,447 113,727
{iv) Provident Fund & ESI 45,712 44 298
Total 760,228 716,497
Mote 22 Other Current Liabilities
Statutory & Other Dues Payables 369,260 311,964
Cthers 21,388,168 4,878,914
Total 21,757,428 5,190,878

p—— ——
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Note 23 Revenue from Operations Forthe year ended  For the year ended
Sale of Manufactured Goods (including Excise Duties) March 31,2023 March 31.2022
Industrial Gases - Oxygen # -
Power- Wind 4,194,655 3. 718470
Sale of Traded Goods
Indusirial Gases - Oxygen = 3
Specialty Gases & Cylinders & Othars 2,636,100 6,987 920
Total 6,830,755 10,706,390
Mote 24 Other Income
Interest Income from Bank Deposits 681,236 819,998
Dividend 59,575 672,359
Incoma fram Cryotank Equipments 546,000 1,074,500
Interast Received from Income Tax 486,387 1,084,077
Miscellansous Income 100,000 56,878
Prafil on sale of Mulual Funds 557,874 466,176
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 7,233,886 -
Gain/ Loss on fair market valuation on investment 196,499 1,045,539
Liability Mo Longer Required Written Of 9,902 -
Deferred Income of Capital Subsidy 810,000 B10,000
Total 10,241,359 5,029,527

Mote 25 Costof Material Consumed
Industrial Gases - Oxygen = L

Total N IS8

Mote 26 Purchase of Traded Goods
Indusitrial Gases - Cuygen

Specialty Gases & Cylinders & Others 2,455,569 4 642,436
Total 2 I&E 4!’542!435

Mote 27 Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods,
Work in Progress and Stock in Trade

Opening Stock (Stock in Trade) 213,862 381,706
Less: Closing Stock (Stock in Trade) 213,862 213,862
Total - 177,843
Note 28 Manufacturing Expenses
Slores & Spares consumed - .
Power & Fuel 280,820 310,809
Repair & Maintenance lo:
Buildings 1,138 8,778
Plant and Machinary 731,886 888,046
Others 205,564 280,981
Total 1.1 4
Note 29 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Gratuity 3,403 441 3,434,764
Contribution o Praviden! Fund, ESI & Other Funds 295,275 314,753
Staff Welfare Expenses 595,445 398,813
Total 4,294,161 4,148,330
MNote 30 Finance Cosis T i
Interest paid on - term loans from Banks 6,455,262 6,251,206
- working capital loan from bank 807 142 719,393
- on others - B3S
Total 7,262 404 6,971,524
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For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Note 31 Other Expenses

Rent 1,756,652 1,835,588
Rates, Taxes & Licence Foo 27 484 560,300
Bank charges and commission 18,386 111,298
Travelling and Conveyance 1,393,821 473,542
Directors’ Remuneration 2,220,000 2,220,000
Directors’ Sitting Fee 27,500 30,000
Auditors’ Remuneration

(i} Statulory Audit 113,500 113,500
{ii} Limited Review Repor 10,000 10,000
(i) Certification 15,000 2,500
() Tax Audit 12,500 12.500
{v) Internal Audit 15,000 15,000
Communication Expenses 50,424 154,716
Legal and Professional Expensas 2,541,021 2,314 699
Advartisement Expenses 58,020 91,240
Charity and Donation 55,301 53,000
Insurance Charges 391,548 4890149
Vehicle Running & Maintanance 428,065 38243
Contribution to Scientific Research Institutions 107,758 57.401
Sundry Balance Whritten OF 2,287 108,601
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,099,025 2.419,620
Total 11i3-ﬂ 892 l!dﬁﬁﬁ

Note 32 Effective Tax Reconciliation
A reconciliation of the income tax provision 1o the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income
before income taxes is summarised below :

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

Currant Tax - L
Deferred Tax (1,920,865 (1,838,520
Total Income Tax Expense recognised in the current year 1 1,838,520
Profit!|Loss) befors Income Taxes (26,144,158) (30,027,304)
Enacled Tax Rate in india 15.60% 15.60%

Computed expecled lax expenses . a
Tax benefit’ incentive on account of unabsorbed losses - -
Other Adjustments - -
Current Tax Provision (A) - =

=
Timing difference in depreciable assets 1,920,865 1
Deffered Tax Provision (B)
Income Tax Expense (A+B) {1,920,865] {1,838 520)
Effective Tax Rate 7.35% 6.12%
MNote 33 Eamings per Equity Share
Particulars
Profit after Tax (24,223,293) (28,188,874)
Waightad Average Number of Shares (Face Value Rs.10) 2,312,969 2,312,969
Eamings Per Share - Basic & Diluted (Rs.) (10.47) {12.19)
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Note 34 A. Contingencies and Commitments

1) Contingent Liabilities
Particulars

Excise Duty demands
VAT Tax demands

) Commitments

Commitment of Capital Expenditure not provided for in the accounts estimated at Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)

) Guarantees given

Particulars

Bank Guarantees given

34 B, Trade Receivables amounting to Rs. 3,13,77 B85 is subject lo confirmation as on 31-03-2023.

Amount in Rs.
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
79,716,430 79,716,430
581,251 d
79,71

3,037,933

34 C. The Company has no transactions with companies struckofl under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013
or saction 580 of the Companies Act, 1958.

Note 35 Ratlos
Particulars Numerater Denominator mﬂ 3% \'I{:t;r

(a) Currant ratio Current assels Current liabilities 098 175 {43.71)

(b} Debt-Equity ratio Total Debt Equity 1.53 113 36.20

{c) Debt service coverage ratio Earnings available | Debl Service (2) (0.06) {0.18) (65.74)
for debt servica (1)

{d) Return on equity (ROE) Met Profit after tax | Average Equity 44 70% -35.52% .0, 1B%

(2} Inventory urnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold | Average Inventory z 0.59 {100.00)

{f} Trade receivables tumover ratio Revenue Average lrade 0.23 0.40 (43.29)

receivable

() Trade payables tumover ratio Purchase of goods |  Average rade 064 195 (48.76)
& other expenses payable

(h) Met capital turnover ratio Revenusa Working Capital (7.19) 043 |(1,765.45)

{i) Met profit ratio Met Profit Revenus 354 B2% 263 20% 520.83

(i) Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) Earings before Capltal employed .24 2% -18.60% 0.90

interest and fax

(3)

Motes:

1 Met profit bafore tax + Non Cash Operating axpenses + Interest + Other Adjustments like loss on sale of fixed assets elc
2 Current debt obligations + Interest Paymenis

3 Total assets - Curmant liabilities
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Note 36 Employes Benefit Obligations
i El'ﬂllﬁ!'
Funded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amount recognised In the statement of profil and loss Is as under:

Current service cost 117,454 125,567
[interest cost 63,483 59,730 |
|{Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss 180,937 185,297

es in Present Value Obl

|Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the start of the year 2,668,157 2,782 452
Current service cosl B 117,454 125,567
Interest cosl 189,439 102670
measurement- due 1o Fnancial assumplions. [34,415) (37,067
Remeasurament- due lo Experance Adjustmants (230,879) {211.830)
(344,013} (193 644

2,365,743 2,668,157 |

Change In fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assels as al the star of the year 1,946,033 2,023 816

Interest Incoma 125,956 132,848

Employer Contriubution = =

Contribution . -
st e ea
L& i- Relumn on Assels (12,837) (16,688

Fair value of plan assels as at the and of the year 1,715,139 1,946,033

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assats

Present value cbligation as at the end of the year 2,365,743 2,668,157

Fair value of plan assels as at the end of the year 1,715,139 1,846,033

Not liability/{asset) recognized in balance sheat 650,604 722124

Amount recognised in the statemant of Other Comprehensive Income

Actuanal Galn|Loss) for Ihe year on PBO {34,415) {37,067}

Actuanal Gain/{Loss) for the year on Asset (230,879} {211,830}

Relumn on Plan Assel, Excluding Interest Income 12,837 16,888

Unrecognised actuarial Gain/(Loss) at the end of the year {252 457 (232,009

Breakup of Actuarlal gain/loss:

Actuarial (gain ¥loss on arising from in d raphic assumption - -

Actuarial (gain)loss on arising from in financial assumption (34,415) {37.067)

Actuarial @ain}l'lm on arising from experience adjustment (230,879) (211,830)
[Assumptions March 31,2023 March 31,2022
| Discount rate 7.30% 7.10%

Futura salary increass 6.00% 6.00%
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Gratu

Sensitivity analysis for Gratulty |
impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1 % 2,211,086 2491446
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 2,552 982 2,866,657
Impact of the changa in salary increase

Present valua of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 2,484 824 2,780,789
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 2,269,193 2,568,164
Impact of the change In withdrawal rates

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 2,396,217 2.713.281
b) Impact due to decrease of 1 % 2,346,077 2,610,834

The Sensifivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obiigation as it Is
unlikely that the change in the assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumplions may be correlated

Thare is no change In the mathoed of valuation for the prior pariod.
Effect of plan on Entity’s future Cash Flows
Expectad contribution during the nesxt annual reporting period

Particulars Gratully 2022-23
The Company’s best estimate of coniribution during the next year -

Mote 37 Financial instruments and other related disclosures

i. Capital Management

The Companies capital management is driven by group’s paolicy to maintain a sound capital base to support the continued
developmeant of its business. The Board of Directors seeks to maintain @ prudent balance between different components of the
group's capital. The Management monitors the capital structure and the net financial debt al individual currency level, Nel financial
debl is defined as current and non-current financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and current investments. The debl
equity ratio highlights the ability of a businass to repay its debts. The Company complies with all statutory requirement as par the
extant regulations.

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Equity Shara Capital 23,129,690 23,129,690
Other Equity 18,667,613 43 448 449
Total Equity (A) 41,797,303 ,378,

Short Term Borrowings (Gross Dabt) (B) 28,773,623 21,511,870
Long Term Borrowings (Gross Debt) (B) 35,362 866 53,495.238
Total Capital (A+B) 105,933,792 141,585,347
Gross Debt (B) as above 64,136,489 75,007 208
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,405,256 30521
Less: Other Bank Balances 6,101,323 15 385 458
Net Debt (C) 51,628,910 59,316,539
Net Debt to Equity (C/A) 1.24 0.89
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ii. Categorias of Financial Instruments

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Pactiuin Vaiue] Fair valus | Carying Vake | Fair value

A. Financial Assets

(a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Investmeanis - -| 80,00, 000 B0,00,000
i) Loans 4,24 572 4 24 572 1.54,120 1.54,120
i} Trade Receivables 3,13.77,885 | 3,13,77,885 |2 B5.83.B60 | 2,B5,83,860
iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,25,06,579 | 1,25.06,579 |1 56,90,669 | 1.56,90,669
v) Other Financial Assats 1,81.76.195 ] 1,81,76,195 ] 1
Sub-total 6,24,85,231 | 6,24,85,231 |6,05,18,709 | 6,05,18,709
(b) Measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss

i) Investmenis 72.66,000]| 72,66,090)1 1706641 [1,17.06.641
[Sub-total 7266000] 7 1.17.06,641 [1,17,06.641 |
Total Financial Assets 6.97.51.321 | 6,97.51,321 /7,22 25 350 | 7.22,25,350
B. Financial Liabliities

{a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Borrowings 6,41,36,489 | 6,41,36,489 |7 50,07 208 | 7.50,07,208
ii) Trade Payables 56,78,260 | 56,78,260| &7 86558 | 57.86,559
i} Other Financial Liabilities 12,74025) 12,74.025 25

Total Financial Liabilities 7,10,88,774 | 7,10,88,774 [8,32,98,733 | 8,32,98,733

iii. Fair Value Hierarchy
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or llabilities
Level 2 — Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementunobservable

The following tabie represents the fair value hierarchy of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at Fair Value on
A racurning bases

Particulars Fair Value Hierarch March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Level

Financial Assets

Investment Levell 72 66,090 1,17.06 641

{lv) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variely of financial risks: market risk, liquidity risk & credit risk. The Company’s focus is to
foreses the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The
Company uses dervative financial instruments to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures.

(A) Market risk

Market risk comprises Inlerest rale risk & foreign currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings in foreign currencies.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
marke! interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit markels and rebalances ils financing strategies to achieve an
aptimal maturity profile and financing cost.

{il) Foreign Currency Risks

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have a potential impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss and Equity,
where any transactions are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

The Company's Exchange Rate Risk exposure s primarily due to Trade Payabies, Trade Recelvables and Borrowings in the form
af Buyers' Credit denominated in foreign currencies. The Company uses foreign exchange and forward coniracts primarily to
hedge foreign exchange axposure.

An appreciation/depreciation of the foreign currencies with respect lo functional currency of the Company by 1% would resultin an
decreasefincrease In the Company's Met Profit before Tax by approximately Rs Mil for the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31,
2022 : Rs Nil)
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(B) Liguidity Risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framewark for the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
resenve borrowling facilities, by continuoushy monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the matunty profites of
financial assets and liabilities.

{C) Credit Risk

Credif risk refers 1o the risk that a counterparty will defaull on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
Majority of the Company's fransactions are earned in cash or cash eguivalanis. The frade receivables comprise mainly of
receivables from Corporate customers and Government Undertakings. The Corporate Customers are entenprises with moderate
to good credit ratings. Accordingly, the Company's exposure (o cradil risk in relation lo irade recelvables is considered low, Cradit
risk has always been managed by the company through credil approvals, establishing credit imits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business,

Mote 38 Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Key Management Parsonnal Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Mr S K Sharma Mrs Tara Devi Sharma

Mr Himanshu Sharma Mr= Deepthi Sharma

Mrs Jaya Sharma _

Mr Sukanta Bhattacharjes Companies over which KMP and their refatives have significant influence
Ms Ritu Damani

Bhagawati Steel (P) Ltd
Dindayal Rammup

Related Party Transactions Amount in Rs.
Companies over which KMP
Key Management Personnel Hu:m:;: :::::‘m and their relatives have
Particulars - significant influence
March March March March March March
31, 2023 31, 2022 31, 2023 31, 2022 31, 2023 3, 2022
Directors’ Remuneration 22,20,000| 2220000
Directors’ Sitting Fees 27.500 30,000
Remuneration paid to KMP 4,75,647 402337
Other Perguisites
Rem paid 12,02,652| 11452388 5,04,000 5,04 000
Reimbursemant of Salaries & Others - -
Balance as at year end
Metl Receivable T74,28,80B] 7918413 6,16,743 T.81,.287
Note 39 Disclosure Requirement of (Segment Reporting) Aoyt i
1. Segment Revenue v s
Gases 1,28,77,459 1,30,17,447
Power 41,94 555 3T 18470
Total (a) 1.70,72.114 1,67,3591T7
Unallocable revenue (b}
Total (a + b) 1,70,72,114 1,67,35917
2. Segment Results
Gases (2,29.,84 456) (2.50,39,289)
FPower 41,02,702 19,83.419
Other unallocable expenses (net of unallocable income) - *
o (1,88,81,754) (2,30,55,870)
Interest & other charge 7262404 69,71.524
Total Profit before tax (2,61.44,158) {3,00,27,394)
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Staternents for the year ended 31 March 2023 Amount in Rs.
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2

3. Segment Assets i
Gases 121,808,512 147,000,131
Power 12,564,044 9,477,925
Others 475,515 716,125
Total 134,849,071 157,194,181

4. Segment Liabilities
Gases 92,209,205 87,839,611
Powear 637,000 650,000
Other 205,566 2,126,431
Capital & Resarves 41,797,300 66,578,139
Tatal 134,849,071 157,194,181

Note 40 : Previous year's figure have been rearrangad /regrouped wherever necessary

As per our report attached of even date
For FOR CHATURVEDI & CO

Chartered Accountants Forand on behalf of the Board of Diractors
(Firm's Registration No.302137E)
S. C. Chaturvedi Suresh Kr Sharma Himanshu Sharma
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.: 012705 (DIM ; D0041150) (DIN : DDO41181)
Place: Kolkata
Date  30th May 2023 Sukanta Bhattacharjee Ritu Damani

Chief Finance Officer Company Secratary
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

NOTES
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If undelivered please return to :

BHAGAWAT! OXYGEN LIMITED
Plot No. 5, Sector 25
Ballabgarh 121004 (Haryana)



Bhagawati Oxygen Limited | ATTENDANCE SLIP
(CIN No. L T4898HR 197 2PLCD0OE203)

Registered Office : Plot No. 5, Sector-25, Ballabhgarh-121 004, Haryana, 518t Annual Ganeral Meeting
Emai idl - bolkol@globalbol com;  website : www.globabol com Wednesday, 27th September, 2023

I { We hereby record my presence al the 5161 Annual Genaral Meeting being held on Wadnesday, 27t Seplernber 2023 al the registered office of the Company & 1.00 pm

Name of Proxy (in Block Letters) Signature of Sharaholder | Proxy Present

Please read the instructions given in the nolice of the 5181 Annual General Meeling dated 30,05, 2023, The remale e-voling period starts from 10:00 A M.

on Sunday, 24th Seplembar, 2023 and ends at 05:00 P.M. on Tuesday 26th Seplembar, 2023, At the end of the remote a-voling period, tha partal
whare tha votes are cast shall forthwith be blocked by NSDL.

Signature of Sharehoider | Proxy
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51st Annual General Meeting Bhagawati Oxygen Limited PROXY FORM
Wednesday, 27th September, 2023 (CIN No. L 74899HR1972PLC006203)

Registared Office : Plot No. 5, Sector-25, Ballabhgarh-121 004, Haryana. Emall id : bolkol@globalbol.com;  wabsite | www.globalbol.com

If Wa, being the member(s), holding.............iindiiumio i o Share of Bhagowali Oxygen Limiled hereby appoint :
DL DT s nsnnonivinisssssnmpmunpipnsnobmicpaasnnisn sbasshnasnamssissngusnsnn opppmnnnsuwnppapsnion: SDRT TG s osshus s s sngs i s A A SRR AR A b

(3) NAMME ... ressnssmnin e - = . Addrass

As my / our proxy lo attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on myfour behalfl at the 51st Annual General Meeling of the Company, to

be held on Tussday, 27th September, 2023 al 01:00 p.m. at the registered office of the company and at any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolutions as are indicated below :

Rﬂ'ﬂﬂ;‘ﬂm Resolition Propasad PIBH}M
Ordinary Business

Adoption of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31"March, 2023

2 Approval for re-appointment of a Director in place of Mr. Suresh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 0004 1150) retiring

by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offering herself for re-appaintment

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3 Re-Appointment of Mr, Suresh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 0004 1150), as the Whole-time Direclor

Re-Appointment of Mr. Himanshu Sharma (DIN: 00041181), as the Managing Director

5 Approval for appointment of Mr, Sanjay Kumar Rai (DIN: 01587531) as an Independent Direclor of the Company

SIgNBA IS, ... osoe Y O 2028

Members FOROIDP I0-CHONID NO. ... GRS OF SHAIENOKFOI(S)....erccssssemmsmssns | mw
B P TR e s s o e o o e s o o ol OO

Maote: 1. The proxy must ba duly completed & deposited at ihe Registerad Office of the Company nol less thal 48 hours before the commencement of
the meeling. The proxy need nol be a mamber of the Comparny,

2. For the Resolutions proposed, Explanatory Statement and Notes, Please refer 1o the Notice of the 51st Annual General Mesting.




